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Treasurer’s Report S EH &

Report of the Treasurer to the Council on the Group’s
Financial Statements for the Year ended 30 June 2018

OVERVIEW

2017/18 was a fruitful year for the University as it has achieved another
strategic milestone after attaining the university title. The University was
granted a full self-accrediting status for all its academic programmes
including disciplines complementary to education. In addition, according
to “The World University Rankings by Subject 2018" published by the
Quacquarelli Symonds, the University was ranked 2nd in Asia and 9th

in the world in Education, climbing higher in the world ranking. All of
the above came as excellent news to the University’s community who
witnessed the development of the University from an Institute.

In 2017/18, the University recorded an overall net surplus of about $64.9
million for the year, of which $22.0 million was derived from UGC-funded
activities and $42.9 million from non-UGC-funded activities. At the
Group level, the net surplus of $65.8 million included a small surplus

of $0.9 million mainly from its subsidiary, The EdJUHK Schools Limited
(“Schools Limited”).

OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group adopted the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Statement of Recommended Practice (“SORP") for
the UGC-funded Institutions in Hong Kong. Note 1 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements shows the details of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

INCOME

Compared to 2016/17, there was an increase of $0.4 million in the
Recurrent Grants and a decrease of about $6.4 million in the Earmarked
Grants. Tuition, programmes and other fees of the University had
increased by about $7.7 million contributed mainly from UGC-funded
programmes. Total interest and net investment income amounted to
$11.5 million which was slightly lower than that of last year mainly

due to the unrealised loss from financial assets held by the newly
established investment portfolios managed by the investment managers.
Furthermore, donation and benefactions of the University decreased by
about $5.3 million to $66.8 million.
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At the subsidiary level, the EQUHK School of Continuing and Professional
Education Limited (“SCPE") received total income of about $0.2 million
mainly derived from term deposits, and the Schools Limited received

government subventions of about $43.2 million.
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The following diagrams show the breakdown of the total income of the TEE AR B AARIE KR FER

University by category:

INCOME
L ON

2017/2018: $1,672 million $16.728
2016/2017:  $1,664 million  $16.64{%
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Due to the change in accounting policy on recognition of the University’s
donation income in 2015/16, figures in 2014/15 have been restated for
comparative purpose. The figures for 2013/14 in the chart have not been

restated but are being shown for reference only.
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Treasurer’s Report 7 E#f &

EXPENDITURE

Total expenditure of the Group amounted to $1,650 million, an increase
of $77.5 million as compared to that of last year. The expenditure of the
University proper had increased by $73.2 million to $1,607 million.

At the University level, total amount of $1,136 million was spent on
teaching, learning and research, about 71% of the total expenditure.
The increase of $61.3 million compared to 2016/17 was mainly due
to additional budget allocated to faculties and departments to recruit
additional academic and teaching staff to strengthen the University’s
teaching and research capacity to prepare for the coming Research
Assessment Exercise.

Under institutional support, an increase of about $12.0 million as
compared to 2016/17 was recorded. The major part of the increase came
from the depreciation of premises and related expenses which amounted
an increase of about $7.2 million. In addition, an increase in the
operating expenses of student and general education services accounted
for about $3.2 million which mainly included the increase of scholarship,
bursaries and prizes, and extra-curricular activities for students. An
increase of staff costs mainly due to pay adjustments accounted for
about $7.6 million. On the other hand, the operating expense under the
institutional support decreased by about $2.8 million.

At the subsidiary level, the SCPE had ceased to offer programme and
course since 2014/15 and the expenditure was to cover the charges
for administration services and rental of storage space provided by the
University. The Schools Limited incurred a total expenditure of $42.4
million which was mainly for the staff costs.

The following diagram shows the breakdown of the total expenditure of
the University:
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The University’s total net assets had a slight increase of 6% to $1,214
million at the end of 2017/18. During the year, the University had
commissioned two reputable investment managers to establish two
investment portfolios based on the newly formulated investment strategy.
A total of around $400 million (equivalent to US$50 million) was put into
the portfolios for medium to long-term investment. As a result, cash and
deposits thus reduced to $1,343 million.

With the surplus of $13.6 million from UGC-funded activities transferred
to the General and Development Reserve Fund, the total balance of the
fund accumulated to about $505 million at the end of the year.

OUTLOOK

In the coming years, the University will likely face many challenges. The
implementation of the UGC Cost Allocation Guidelines in 2018/19 will
affect the operations of our self-financing programmes. The current
report of the Task Force on Review of Self-financing Post-secondary
Education proposes certain changes to this sector and will further hinder
the University from running self-financing undergraduate programmes
in the University proper. The continued drop in the population of Grade
6 secondary school students from 2018 to 2022 as projected by the
Education Bureau will increase the competition in student recruitment
in those years. Those challenges will definitely have an impact on the
University’s development especially for the supplementary disciplines.

The University’s financial position has been improving year by year

with total accumulated funds of over $1 billion at the end of the year
which should be sufficient to support the University’s endeavours in the
education sector. With its sound financial position, the University would
be able to navigate smoothly through the challenges in the future and
continue making contributions to the community.

Ms Susanna CHIU Lai-kuen, MH, JP

Treasurer

The Council of The Education University of Hong Kong
4 October 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report &3 #% B Ef R &

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of
The Education University of Hong Kong
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Education
University of Hong Kong Ordinance)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The Education
University of Hong Kong (“the University”) and its subsidiaries

(together “the Group”) set out on pages 10 to 69, which comprise the
Consolidated and University Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June
2018, the Consolidated and University Statements of Comprehensive
Income, the Consolidated and University Statements of Changes in Funds
and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and the University as at
30 June 2018 and of their financial performance and the Group’s cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The Council of the University is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the financial
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Education University of Hong Kong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Education
University of Hong Kong Ordinance)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COUNCIL FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Council of the University is responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and for such internal
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Council is
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Council intends to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Council is assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging its
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 15 of The Education University of
Hong Kong Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report %7 # 257 35 &

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Education University of Hong Kong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Education
University of Hong Kong Ordinance)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the Council.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events

or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability

to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained

up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Council of

The Education University of Hong Kong (Continued)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong under The Education
University of Hong Kong Ordinance)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the Group. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

4 October 2018

HEBHEAEREE (&)
(1R15 (EBHBAEIRG) REBEMAL)

- AEFAVBRRNERIRIR  EBAR
R BERERE  UREAVBHRRELSHERKR
RHMEI o

BRE B 55 S M
fié B &AM BHRRER

EETRTIM - BEEMEAT -
ﬁﬁk?‘f‘ MEE -

[
-
pul

>l D

BEARRSD - HPEETZEGBER T SHEIER
BE - BEZE  BEAESERS  2RRMAEE
R B PR RO E R ERIR A

ﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%éﬁﬁf’*fé C HARMENE A
B MHEBERERER - WROFIEBRE T4

EEMKABLEZELM ﬁil&%ﬁ’]ﬁﬁ*ﬁfﬁ{?ﬂﬁﬁﬂ$
B AREERNERLT - B EEE -

ERRETMERM
HEEFTED

BRPIR
AT
KFRENE

T \F+AWEA

ERYBRE / 2017/2018 B EE#HE 9



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG & B#H A A2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (fr =B &¢8E5)  Fr & BELA B A5 T )

Statements of Financial Position Bt %k % &

At 30June 2018 —ZE—N\FENA=+H

Note
Kzt
Non-current Assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B RER 3
Investments ®E 4
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEZIBASMEE 6
Current Assets REBEE
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEZIEEREE 6
Accounts receivable, deposits FEWERK ~ ke &
and prepayments Taft A 8
Financial assets at fair value RAREEFTAER
through profit or loss NEeREE 9
Bank deposits with original maturity FEEBBE=EA
over three months 2 TEHRTERR 7
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEED 10
Current Liabilities RENEE
Accounts payable and accruals JERTRR R B 5T KB 11
Provision for employee benefits BB EFIRE 12
Deferred income RIEWA 13
Net Current Assets REBEERE
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities & E R R E & &
Non-current Liabilities FREAE
Provision for employee benefits B BERRE 12
Deferred capital funds BEEARESR 14
Net Assets EEFRE
Funds S
UGC funds HESEPES 15
Restricted funds BEES 16
Other funds HihE& 17
Total Funds HEew@EE

Group #&E University # X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fit Fr Tt
1,822,001 1,852,727 1,814,858 1,846,493
1 1 1 1
40,563 40,580 40,563 40,580
1,862,565 1,893,308 1,855,422 1,887,074
- 24,821 - 24,821
101,863 76,850 101,573 76,471
373,567 1,274 373,567 1,274
815,451 664,785 798,051 664,785
560,951 965,584 544,589 935,941
1,851,832 1,733,314 1,817,780 1,703,292
218,245 180,588 208,771 174,576
103,371 107,141 103,180 106,903
323,609 305,442 323,256 305,412
645,225 593,171 635,207 586,891
1,206,607 1,140,143 1,182,573 1,116,401
3,069,172 3,033,451 3,037,995 3,003,475
12,975 13,151 12,975 13,151
1,816,925 1,846,825 1,810,580 1,840,761
1,829,900 1,859,976 1,823,555 1,853,912
1,239,272 1,173,475 1,214,440 1,149,563
586,769 580,819 586,769 580,819
109,328 93,271 109,328 93,271
543,175 499,385 518,343 475,473
1,239,272 1,173,475 1,214,440 1,149,563

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 4 October 2018. RE &K =T — \F+ A B it/ RIEEH R B BHRE -

Prof Frederick MA Si-hang, GBS, JP
BRTHEE  2XHEE - AFat
Chairman of the Council RE & E/&

Prof Stephen CHEUNG Yan-leung, BBS, JP,
RICREE - HEAEE  KTaL,
Officier dans I'Ordre des Palmes Académiques ARG EHE T4 2=
President X =

Ms Susanna CHIU Lai-kuen, MH, JP
HEEzLT  £EHE  KFHaT
Treasurer &J&

Mr Chaddy WONG Kam-chiu
Director of Finance 31 7 iR iE &

The notes on pages 14 to 69 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 142698 KIMi+T/E A A BIF5 iR & a9 — 8617 -
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &E## A K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5B a4BESN » AT & BELAE M B ET)

Statements of Comprehensive Income @ i %

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 HE—Z— \FA=Z+tHILFE

Income

Government subventions

Tuition, programmes and
other fees

Donations and benefactions

Auxiliary services

Interest and net investment
income

Other income

Expenditure

Teaching, learning and research
Teaching and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses
Student and general

education services

Surplus and total
comprehensive income
for the year before transfers

Transfer to/(from)
UGC funds
Restricted funds
Other funds

WA

BT AR
2%  RIEMHEMKE

BRRIBE
W8 AR
NSV g S Ve 6

HAA

X

HE - BT R
HERH R
EEE
PREFL R
HAth Bl AR

HPER
EER—RER
RE KA
B R—RHE R

HBANAFERR
REHEWHEAE

BEZE/ (8)
EEES
Hip RS

Note
iz
19
20
21
22

23

24

15
16
17

A Segment Report showing the income and expenditure of the Group and the University
under UGC-funded and Non-UGC-funded operations is presented in Note 18 of the financial

Statements.

The notes on pages 14 to 69 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 5 142698 KIMi+T/EB A A BIF5 R & o — 8617 -

Group #&E University X

2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr Tt
1,065,081 1,056,085 1,033,371 1,027,940
508,977 500,357 498,640 490,931
66,886 72,477 66,839 72,138
36,282 35,389 36,426 35,540
11,652 15,282 11,456 15,187
26,425 22,952 25,334 21,854
1,715,303 1,702,542 1,672,066 1,663,590
975,056 913,180 934,847 877,215
59,115 56,177 59,115 56,177
79,469 79,493 79,469 79,493
62,165 61,424 62,165 61,424
104,237 95,972 104,042 95,783
260,807 262,441 258,895 260,569
108,657 103,287 108,656 103,286
1,649,506 1,571,974 1,607,189 1,533,947
65,797 130,568 64,877 129,643
21,854 73,934 21,854 73,934
153 (191) 153 (191)
43,790 56,825 42,870 55,900
65,797 130,568 64,877 129,643

FEERHBABARBUELHZER( [HET] )AEDRIFEHE

EEEBMDERE - EHRAHBHREAT18

BEEBHBENRE / 2017/2018 HERE
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &EHHA AE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5B a4BES) - AT & BELAE M B ET)

Statements of Changes in Funds E& # & *

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 HE—Z— \FA=Z+tHILFE

Balance at 1 July 2016

Transfer from/(to) statement of
comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer

Balance at 30 June 2017 and
at 1 July 2017

Transfer from statement of
comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer

Balance at 30 June 2018

Balance at 1 July 2016

Transfer from/(to) statement of
comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer

Balance at 30 June 2017 and
at 1 July 2017

Transfer from statement of
comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer

Balance at 30 June 2018

The notes on pages 14 to 69 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 5 142698 KIMi+T/EB A A BIF5 iR & i — 8617 -

HoRsEiRE

R-ZB—tEXA=+HEK
—E—t+tEtA-HANERE
B 2 ERER
HERIsEERE

REZB-N\FARA=Z+HNER

E&HER

REZB—tFAA=THR
—E—tFtA-BNET

EEEREmKER
HoREiE
R-ZB—-NFEXA=+HNERE
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Group # &M
UGC Restricted Other Total
funds funds funds HEE
HEE BEES HES
EPES
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt T Tt Fr
Note 15 Note 16 Note 17
HizF 15 KizF 16 KizF 17
519,330 81,017 442,560 1,042,907
73,934 (191) 56,825 130,568
(12,445) 12,445 - -
580,819 93,271 499,385 1,173,475
21,854 153 43,790 65,797
(15,904) 15,904 - -
586,769 109,328 543,175 1,239,272
University # X
UGC Restricted Other Total
funds funds funds HzE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Fr
Note 15 Note 16 Note 17
HizE 15 Kzt 16 Bzt 17
519,330 81,017 419,573 1,019,920
73,934 (191) 55,900 129,643
(12,445) 12,445 - -
580,819 93,271 475,473 1,149,563
21,854 153 42,870 64,877
(15,904) 15,904 - -
586,769 109,328 518,343 1,214,440




THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &EHH A AE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5B a4BESN » AT & BELAE M B ET)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement %8R HRER

For the Year Ended 30 June 2018 HEZ—Z— \FNA=1+HIFE

Note
Ff et
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNRESRE
Cash generated from operations EEEANES 27(a)(FF)
Net cash generated from operating activities BERYELR R
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHHNRSRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment IEEME B NRE
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BENRARBEFABRD
through profit or loss TRIEE
Increase in balances held at the investment PR E IR R R EREEIE N
managers
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYZ R RBEFEHRIE
plant and equipment
Net (increase)/decrease in bank deposits with REEAR#R B =1 A 2 & BTF R
original maturity over three months (38hn) /R
Redemption of financial assets at fair value BREAAEBEAABENSHEE
through profit or loss
Redemption of held-to-maturity BOREZI AR CmEE
financial assets upon maturity
Interest received B UFE
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing ®EES (FTA) /R F5E
activities
Cash flows from financing activities RETHNRERE
Grants and donations received for additions RIBBYIZE - WERKH
of property, plant and equipment Frit & Bl & R IB K 27(b)(Z.)
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEBEREFE
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HERBESEEYH OBL) /
cash equivalents EInFEER
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FUMHReRREEEY
of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FROBERASEED
the year 10

The notes on pages 14 to 69 form part of these consolidated financial statements. 5 142698 KIMi+T/EB A A BIF5 iR & i — 8617 -

Group F&E

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Fi T
89,011 91,115
89,011 91,115
(81,898) (111,450)
(377,672) =
(12,253) =
1 96
(150,666) 162,585
50 50
24,990 =
13,608 13,152
(583,840) 64,433
90,196 109,337
90,196 109,337
(404,633) 264,885
965,584 700,699
560,951 965,584

EBKBERE / 2017/2018 BE#HsE 13



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &EHHA AE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

BHEHBI - TE 2B RSB )

Notes to the Financial Statements & & sk R K5

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 ETESHBE

1.1 Statement of compliance 11 &REH
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with R BHRREIEBREBGTAREMBAN R
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), BERAM <<%-§?§E7ﬁ5‘$&i4§ﬁ‘ ) EREEE
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Fﬁ*ﬁmFﬁE’] B (EBMBHREEL) - (F
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards B BEEGHMASHERNZRER
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of EREBEFRMNZ T RAIMGES o 25 HER
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and accounting principles RMFERBHEEDEER ([HER]) &
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also FEB BB EEER ([&FER]) F
comply with Statement of Recommended Practice (“SORP”) for the MRl o AT HRBEASEERIRMZ EZGTTK
University Grants Committee (“UGC")-Funded Institutions in Hong *x o
Kong. Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that BRI RS RM T HERASTFEER
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current Ex&‘ka#&ﬁﬁﬂﬂWE’J%ﬁuT&ﬁ‘“ CHERSYS
accounting period of the Group and the University. Note 1.3 M mELR]) - AYRRGRELERAEEE
provides information on any changes in accounting policies RARYES AT S| B E AT AN A & 5T AR e & 51K
resulting from initial application of these developments to the KEBENAMBREARR - BB
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior HIEE1.3 ©
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

1.2  Basis of preparation of the financial statements 1.2 HMBERRDENEE
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June HE_Z- \FRA=ZTHIELFENGZSE
2018 comprise the University and its subsidiaries (together referred BHRFREBHANMEME LR (K8 F$’i
to as “the Group”). Bl ) o
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial BRTXAENETERSARAI - REA
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated in M mRREUNELKRERTEER - &
the accounting policies set out below. The preparation of financial BESEGHEME (FEVBRELEN)
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management MISHEE  (FHE S BERMER - AR
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect HEE  BFE  WANMZENIIRSEHRE
the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, HENHE - METAER o B F AR
liabilities, income and expenditure. The estimates and associated Fﬁ Eii&%@})““uﬁﬂ’]i‘“%ﬁﬁ 8 [E A i
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other ARREIBNZIEEREZMELS - K&
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, ﬁJU%TE@Jﬁ'ﬁﬁxﬂiﬁEMLf“T?%%Dﬁ?
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements 2B 5 A0 AR T (B ELAS P AE M a0 5 o
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily RAER A RE A RIANME R 2 -
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an BLAET B REFRAERN - IRE
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised SHEEtERTEFEX R AR ER g
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects TEZHAEANER  WRZIEBEETHE AR
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods REREII B R E - RIRZIERTIMELERT &
if the revision affects both current and future periods. AR 2R H ) T AR

14 The Education University of Hong Kong / Financial Report 2017/2018



THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &E## A K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (&

1
1.3

1.4

1.5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Change in accounting standards

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group and the
University. None of these impact on the accounting policies of the
Group and the University. However, additional disclosure has been
included in Note 27(b) to satisfy the new disclosure requirements
introduced by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows:
Disclosure initiative, which require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Investments in subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised gains arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains

but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the University’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses (see Note
1.7), unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

BHEHBI - TE 2B RSB )

1

1.4

1.5

FEEHBRER (1)
ErtEREE

B ASRM T BORRAEERHK
*‘“ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬂf‘ﬁéu\ix&ﬂ’ﬂ“‘ EEIM (EEHM
BEEA) o BLEFTHARERNER R
BAEGF HHERNK 27N EEMT BN
WEBBARTE - AT - (BEGTER) F7
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Notes to the Financial Statements 88 & K=
THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &E## A K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5B a4BES) - AT & BELAE M B ET)

1
1.6

16

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note 1.7).

Construction in progress represents buildings and other property,
plant and equipment under construction and is stated at cost

less any impairment losses (see Note 1.7), and is not depreciated.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

The cost of a property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after property, plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
itis incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the property,
plant and equipment, the expenditure is capitalised as an
additional cost of that asset.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their expected
useful lives of 7 years or the unexpired period of the lease on a
straight-line basis, whichever is shorter. Depreciation of other
property, plant and equipment is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:
- Buildings 50 years
- Fixtures and equipment 3 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, annually.

The Education University of Hong Kong / financial Report 2017/2018
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &E## A K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5B a4BESN » AT & BELAE M B ET)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.7 Impairment of assets

(a)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. If there is objective
evidence of an impairment loss on receivables or held-
to-maturity financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The amount of

the loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that property, plant and equipment and investments in
subsidiaries in the statement of financial position may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value

in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

1
1.7
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Notes to the Financial Statements 88 & K=
THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &E## A K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5B a4BES) - AT & BELAE M B ET)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.7 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will

not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been

a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

1.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, receivables

and held-to-maturity financial assets. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
the initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at the end
of each reporting period.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised

on the trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

18  The Education University of Hong Kong / Financial Report 2017/2018
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THE EDUCATION UNIVERSITY OF HONG KONG &E## A K2

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Bt 5B a4BESN » AT & BELAE M B ET)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit

or loss if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term or if so designated by management. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if they are
either held for trading or are expected to be realised within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value are
presented in the statement of comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income as part of interest
and net investment income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Receivables

Receivables representing time deposits are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the
Group provides money or services directly to a debtor with
no intention of trading the receivable. They are included
in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These

are classified as non-current assets. They are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, unless
the discounting effect is insignificant, less provision for
impairment.

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the management has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity financial
assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

The fair values of quoted financial assets are based on current

bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and

for unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using

valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s

length transactions or reference to other instruments that are

substantially the same and discounted cash flow analysis.
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BEHBI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are recognised when
there is objective evidence of impairment and are measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset
and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate where the effect of discounting is
material. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about events that
have an impact on the asset’s estimated future cash flows such as
significant financial difficulty of the debtor.

Impairment losses for accounts receivable included within accounts
receivable, deposits and prepayments whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against accounts receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating

to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

Accounts payable and accruals

Accounts payable and accruals are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.12 Employee benefits

(a)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and development
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for unutilised
annual leave and development leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Superannuation scheme

The University has set up a superannuation scheme (“the
Scheme"”) to provide its employees with benefits on
retirement or termination of employment.

Members of the Scheme contribute 5% of their basic
monthly salaries to the Scheme and benefits are paid

to them on their retirement or on leaving employment
subject to certain conditions as stipulated in the Scheme’s
trust deed. Contributions to the Scheme are expensed as
incurred and other than those monthly contributions, the
University has no further obligation for the payment of
termination or retirement benefits to its employees.

Mandatory provident fund scheme

The Group has established mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF scheme”) in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered
funds. Both the Group and the employees are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a statutory maximum requirement per employee per
month. The Group’s contribution to the MPF scheme is
expensed as incurred.

1.13 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing

or amount when the Group or the University has a legal or

constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where

the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the

present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Recurrent subventions and grants are recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match them with the related
costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic
basis, based on the assumption that the conditions of the
recurrent subventions can be met.

Government subventions and grants, which are earmarked for
specific purposes, are initially recognised as deferred income when
there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attached to it and that the subventions will be
received. They are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on a systematic basis to match with the related costs for
which they are intended to be used.

Government subventions and grants, and donations with specific
purposes spent on capital expenditure are recorded as deferred
capital funds and are released and credited to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of the related assets when the assets are put in use, to
the extent of the related depreciation expense for that period.

Grants from government agencies for courses are recognised when
services are provided and complied with the conditions attached to
it. They are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
over the duration of the related courses.

Tuition, programmes and other fees, and auxiliary services income
are recognised over the period of the courses or services to which
they are related.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 1

Income recognition (Continued) 114

Donations in cash and cash equivalents or other investment
instruments for general purposes are recognised as income at
fair values when it is probable that they will be received, which
is generally upon their receipt. Donations with specific purposes
designated by the donors are initially recognised as deferred
income when received, and then recognised as income to the
extent of their related expenditure incurred during the year.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line
basis.

Operating lease charges 115

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payment made under the leases are charged to the
statement of comprehensive income in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received

are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as

an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the statement of comprehensive
income in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Related parties 116

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

0) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.16 Related parties (Continued)

24

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.

FINANCIAL RISK AND FUND RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group conducts its operation in Hong Kong
with its transactions denominated in Hong

Kong dollars ("HKD"). The Group derives its
operation income mainly in HKD. The Group’s
foreign currency exposures arise mainly from and
are substantially limited to the exchange rate
movements between HKD and United States dollars
("USD") because most of the financial assets held
under treasury investments and cash balances which
are subject to foreign exchange movements are
denominated in USD.
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2 FINANCIAL RISK AND FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)
2.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s and the

University’s major exposure at the end of the

reporting period to currency risk arising from

recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a

currency other than the functional currency of

the entity to which they relate. For presentation

purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown

in HKD, translated using the spot rate at the end of

the reporting period.

2018

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Accounts receivable, deposits
and prepayments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Bank deposits with original
maturity over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts payable and accruals

Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and liabilities

2017

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Accounts receivable, deposits
and prepayments

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Bank deposits with original
maturity over three months

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts payable and accruals

Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and liabilities
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United States Australian  Canadian ~ Pounds Switzerland European Japanese
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$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
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United States Australian  Canadian ~ Pounds Switzerland European  Japanese
Dollars ~ Renminbi Dollars Dollars  Sterling Franc Dollars Yen
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2 FINANCIAL RISK AND FUND RISK MANAGEMENT 2

(CONTINUED)
2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

21

The following table indicates the instantaneous

change in the Group’s and University’s surplus

for the year and funds that would arise if foreign

exchange rates to which the Group and the

University have significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged

rate between HKD and USD would be materially

unaffected by any changes in movement in value of

USD against other currencies. Other components

of funds would not be affected by changes in the

foreign exchange rates. The analysis is performed

on the same basis as 2017.

Increase/(decrease) in
foreign exchange rates

FE
EFI(REE)

Renminbi AREE 5%
(5)%

Australian Dollars JRIT 5%
(5)%

Canadian Dollars EXIT 5%
(5)%

Pounds Sterling HEE 5%
(5)%

Switzerland Franc Im ARR 5%
(5)%

European Dollars BT 5%
(5)%

Japanese Yen BT 5%
(5)%

26  The Education University of Hong Kong / Financial Report 2017/2018

MERBRREERER ()

MBRBRER (#)

SRR (4)

()

(=)

SINE 2 (45)

BURE AT
TRIIRARE B RBANF
EaHMET FEAEE MR
AXBRREBNEXRNEES
BzeE% (R&EMAEMLE
b S0 B HS ) 1 BRS R IR
BB - it E - AEE
BRERETHEMEE NI
KEZ2¥VTefETax
TCEV B B IE RIERNE R
2 ZEePHMBERDDH
TeXIEZTHHHTE -
ZONRE - E -+ FHEA
B ELAETEHEY -

Group and University &&EERH A

2018

Effect on surplus
and funds

HARRES
Nz
$'000
T

(13)
13
68
(68)
148
(148)
149
(149)
227
(227)
1,105
(1,105)
524
(524)

Increase/(decrease) in
foreign exchange rates

2017

Effect on surplus
and funds
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2

2.1

FINANCIAL RISK AND FUND RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
the interest-bearing financial assets held under
treasury investments, which are reviewed on a
regular basis in accordance with the Group’s policies
and guidelines.

Based on the sensitivity analysis performed at 30
June 2018, if interest rates on variable rate interest-
bearing bank deposits had been 50 basis points
higher or 25 basis points lower with all other
variables held constant, surplus for the year would
have been $856,000 higher (2017: $1,484,000
higher) or $138,000 lower (2017: $268,000 lower)
respectively, as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank deposits.

Price risk

Price risk refers to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk. The equity price
risk of the investment is managed by reputable
professional investment managers through their
in-house risk management, risk analytical systems
and on-going monitoring controls. In addition,

the investment managers follow the Group’s
investment guidelines to diversify the equity price
risk in different geographical locations and industry
segments. The Group also monitors the risk
exposure by carrying out appropriate assessments
on the investment strategies and reviews on periodic
reports from the investment managers from time to
time.

As at 30 June 2018, the carrying amounts of equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss held by the Group in different
regions are analysed and are listed in the following
tables:

2
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2 FINANCIAL RISK AND FUND RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Price risk (Continued)

ESG
M
DARE - FBRARERS
SRS
B
HoAt

United States

Europe

Asia Pacific excluding Hong Kong and Japan
Japan

Hong Kong

Others

Total Rk

28

As the end of the reporting period, if the prices of
the respective equity investments had been 5%
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s surplus for the year would have been
increased/decreased by $5,771,000 (2017: Nil).

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its
deposits and cash at banks, accounts receivable and
investment balances with financial institutions. There

are procedures in place to mitigate the risk and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored closely by the
management on an ongoing basis.

Accounts receivable in respect of tuition fees are receivable
by due dates preset every year according to the academic
calendar. The Group has a policy of withholding the

issue of academic documents to students to enhance the
quality of accounts receivable. The credit risk in investment
balances with financial institutions and deposits and cash
at banks are limited because the counterparties are mainly
banks and financial institutions with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. For banks
and financial institutions, only independently rated parties
with a minimum Moody’s rating of “A” are accepted. The
University has no significant concentration of credit risk
and the risk exposure is diversified over a large number of
counterparties. The University has policies that limit the
amount of credit exposure to any single financial institution.

Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that it maintains

sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.
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() TBERGE
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Group and University Z&EE KK

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
F Tt
17,023 -
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15,183 -
1,686 -
115,417 -
NEEH BERENERL
FIT 5%+ FEE M — ) A &
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5,771,0007C (20174 : &) o
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2 FINANCIAL RISK AND FUND RISK MANAGEMENT 2 HMEREREERBER ()
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 21 HMEREER (F)
() Liquidity risk (Continued) (A)  "EESER (&)
Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available to mBEERKRERIETAED LI
meet liabilities as and when they fall due, and it results REEREN  MRBEERBERN
from mismatch of assets and liabilities. The Group $HEC - ARBETEHRTRESRETA
performs regular projected cash flow analysis to manage D - NERRBE S AR - FERA
liquidity risk to ensure that all liabilities due and known ENMBINHEENEANNESS
funding requirements could be met. Prudent liquidity ko BEMNRBEREEBELARE
management also includes maintaining adequate credit B RITH RS EHNEERE -
facilities in the Group's approved banks.
The table below analyses the Group’s and the University's Tk AANEE R H AL B (SR
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based EEEANR BT S EEMEE
on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period FEIE R AT - LT HRENSEAS
to the contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed MARBLBINS RS - MRS
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. M tRE121E B N B ERE S BE R
Balance for accounts payable and accruals due within 12 MESH 2B SN IR EE -
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.
Group =5
Over 3 Over 1 year
months but  but within 2
Within 3 within 1 year years Over
months  #Bi@31E H1E HBIB1F 2 years Total
BEAKIAT 1FER B2 2 LA E FEEL]
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr T Fr F
At 30 June 2018 R=ZZB-NEARB=TH
Accounts payable, accruals JERTBRAR ~ FERTFRIA &
and others Hitb 148,741 3,938 450 200 153,329
At 30 June 2017 R=ZZ—tFX<A=TH
Accounts payable, accruals FERTBRER - FERTFRIE R
and others At 124,139 4,672 = 450 129,261
University # X
Over 3 Over 1 year
months but  but within 2
Within 3 within 1 year years Over
months  EB3MEAE HB1F 2 years Total
MEAHKIAT 1R B2F R 2F LA E wagE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T F F Fr F
At 30 June 2018 R-ZB-NFEXA=1H
Accounts payable, accruals FERTBRER - FEETFRIE K&
and others Hit 140,746 3,938 450 200 145,334
At 30 June 2017 R=ZB—tFX<A=1H
Accounts payable, accruals FERTBRER ~ FERTFRIE &
and others EAth 119,118 4,672 - 450 124,240
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2 FINANCIAL RISK AND FUND RISK MANAGEMENT 2 MEBREREERMREE (18)
(CONTINUED)
2.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 21 MERBRER ()
(d) Fair values measurement (T 2nfEEE

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s TREJNASEHEIREE B RA

and the University's financial instruments measured at the REEFENERIA - Wik (FE

end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised B ER]) £13%— [AAE

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS BZHE] FIRENDRBERSS

13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value BRZERH - AREBEFERZ2E

measurement is classified is determined with reference to 1“5%7?529’@6)\5’9%(%}%5@5%%?4&&

the observability and significance of the inputs used in the EEmoBELEEEHRR] - A5

valuation technique as follows: Ik

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level - BQHE: EERE-RBA
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets TEFENLAE  BRFER
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement KAHEREENBEBERNERTS
date. BRI T EERIE -

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 - BCRMHE ERE-ABAT
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level EFENARE  AAEENE
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. ATTE  EREREE —ANE
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data ko BHETBREATATBERH
are not available. BATE - TAIBRBATER

EHISEBNRATTE -

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - BZRMEE EAEATAERER

unobservable inputs. BATRGENLANE -

Fair value measurements 2 AEE &
Group and University A&EE R K

2018 2017
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
—[EBfh FER FER BE EFER FER FZER 4z
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt T Tt Tt Tt Tt

Recurring fair value measurements: &£ E LA R EEE:

Financial assets at fair value RARBEFAEBREN

through profit or loss: TREE :

- Fixed income securities - BEMAEFH 256,838 - - 256,838 - - - -

- Equities - IRE 115,417 - - 115,417 - - - -

- Investment in unlisted unit trust - FE_ T BA{E:EIRE - 1,312 - 1,312 - 1,274 - 1,274

372,255 1,312 - 373,567 - 1,274 - 1,274
During the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2018, there HE-T—)\R=_ZT—tF A=+
were no transfers between instruments in Level 1 and Level Etir?ﬂ ﬁ’iglﬂ BMIATE
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is AABES-HE-BRzZEEHE
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy % RE=REASEL - AEED
at the end of the reporting period in which they occur. BRREAABEER ALRER
MRS HEE AR B AEE -

The fair value of investment in unlisted unit trust in Level EDRE_MEENIELETEMET
2 is determined by the number of unit trust held by the REMDNABE RUAEEREH
Group times its indicative market value as at the end of the BTt B H B RUTISS
reporting period. ZEBIRIRMETE ©
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2

2.2

2.3

FINANCIAL RISK AND FUND RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Fund risk management

The University is a government subvented education institution
established under the laws of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“HKSAR"), which main objects are to provide studies and
training in teacher education and facilities for research into and
the development of education. The University is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements, except as stated in
Note 16, and its activities are mainly funded by government grants
and tuition fees, the spending of which is governed by the UGC
Notes on Procedures and other grant conditions. The University’s
activities are also funded by donations and funds generated from
self-financing activities.

The various restricted and other funds represent the unspent
balance of such grants, income, donations and other specific
purpose funds. These funds are managed according to the
relevant grant and funding conditions, where applicable, and the
University's investment and financial management guidelines and
procedures with the view of meeting the objects of the University.

None of the University’s subsidiaries are subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements and their capital management
policies are governed by their own financial management
guidelines and procedures with the view of safeguarding the
subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern.

Fair value estimation

The carrying values less impairment provision of receivables and
payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated
by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar
financial instruments, unless the effect of discounting will be
immaterial.

2

2.2

2.3

MERBREERER (#7)

RempEE
BRBEEBFITREEPIRT - 2—H
BTEBREHE#RE  TEREREM
BB BN RBERRTNERAFZORE - B
BYEE16RTALSN - KB AT ZAE ST MR ET L
NEMERRTE - BREEEZHNE SRR
TEZERBNFEREE MELESNRMX
BERABEEHHESRFRENHRE X
AR T EMBBRIETE o B4 - BATB
BRASASEEAMBERE  REXTY
EE S kAl

EHREEES LEMESREREMDE
WA~ BARREMEBIEERENES AR
BHAMRE HAEEBELESE - RRIA
BB R BRRRME -  (RE ) EREA S
WEE R ERESIMET - AT AR
RHJEIR

ORI B~ ) H9 SRR 8 <7 M AT SL Y AA
BEARTE  HEANEEBRRHEAS NG
ERESIMEFAARE - BAREESEL

EHIREN -

LREEEE

R U B SRR A R A ) O T 0 R OB M BB
B BERAABEEL WBEENARE
B (EEEN) MARGHRERBUARE
EEUSR TARSHRE SRR
st (BRIFBRER OB EN) -
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3.

32

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost:
At 1 July 2016
Additions
Transfers
Disposals

At 30 June 2017 and
at 1 July 2017

Additions

Transfers

Disposals

At 30 June 2018

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 July 2016
Charge for the year
Written back on disposal
At 30 June 2017 and

at 1 July 2017
Charge for the year
Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2018

Net book value:

At 30 June 2018

At 30 June 2017

B -

R=E—ANELA—A

#E
e
nE

R-ZE—tFXA=T+A
R-Z—tFtH—H

#E
B
BE

RZZE-N\FRA=1+A

REHE

R=ZT—X"FtA—H

REEHE
FRE &R

RZZE—+FA=+H
E=ZT—+F+A—H

REZHE
BRERED

RZZE-N\FARA=1AH

BRI FHE

RZZE—\FRA=t+H

R_ZE—tFA=+H

B RSB RE)
3 MK - BB RN
Group #&H
Leasehold  Fixtures and Construction

Buildings improvements ~ equipment  in progress Total
BF HEMERE RKERRKE EEIR Pk
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
2,384,052 312,588 356,557 15,072 3,068,269
- 20,711 29,425 61,746 111,882

- 54,437 - (54,437) -
- (799) (7,360) - (8,159)
2,384,052 386,937 378,622 22,381 3,171,992
- 25,183 17,930 51,006 94,119

- 34,663 685 (35,348) -
- - (7,892) = (7,892)
2,384,052 446,783 389,345 38,039 3,258,219
748,909 179,770 282,335 - 1,211,014
47,675 40,522 28,026 - 116,223
- (624) (7,348) - (7,972)

796,584 219,668 303,013 - 1,319,265
47,675 48,521 28,649 - 124,845
= = (7,892) = (7,892)

844,259 268,189 323,770 - 1,436,218
1,539,793 178,594 65,575 38,039 1,822,001
1,587,468 167,269 75,609 22,381 1,852,727
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 3 WX RIBREE ()
University # X
Leasehold  Fixtures and Construction
Buildings improvements  equipment  in progress Total
EF HEMERE HERLE fEETRE Pk
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T+t Tt Tt Tt Tt
Cost: 2%
At 1 July 2016 R-ZZ—RFtHA—H 2,380,288 305,737 348,747 15,072 3,049,844
Additions ®eE - 20,318 28,812 61,746 110,876
Transfers %2 - 54,437 - (54,437) -
Disposals BE - (772) (7,340) - (8,112)
At 30 June 2017 and RZE—tFA=+H
at 1 July 2017 E=Z—+F+H—H 2,380,288 379,720 370,219 22,381 3,152,608
Additions H#E - 24,174 16,054 51,006 91,234
Transfers B - 34,663 685 (35,348) =
Disposals BE - - (7,888) - (7,888)
At 30 June 2018 R=Z—N\FA=1+H 2,380,288 438,557 379,070 38,039 3,235,954
Accumulated depreciation:  RFHE :
At 1 July 2016 RZZE—R"F+tHA—H 747,721 176,697 274,916 - 1,199,334
Charge for the year KEFE 47,602 39,644 27,460 = 114,706
Written back on disposal EEEEM - (597) (7,328) = (7,925)
At 30 June 2017 and RZZE—tF-A=+H
at 1 July 2017 E=—ZE—tF+tA—H 795,323 215,744 295,048 - 1,306,115
Charge for the year REEHE 47,602 47,500 27,767 - 122,869
Written back on disposal BB = = (7,888) - (7,888)
At 30 June 2018 R-Z—N\FA=1+AH 842,925 263,244 314,927 - 1,421,096
Net book value: BREFE :
At 30 June 2018 R_ZT—N\F~A=+AH 1,537,363 175,313 64,143 38,039 1,814,858
At 30 June 2017 RZZE—+FA=+H 1,584,965 163,976 75,171 22,381 1,846,493
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4  INVESTMENTS 4 BA
Group A &E University #X
2018 2017 2018 2017
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Hix F57 Fr F57 Fr
Investments in institutional entities RIEERIERIRE (a) (FF) 1 1 1 1
Investments in subsidiaries RHE R REIRE (b)(2) = =
1 1
(a) Investments in institutional entities () RIEBHEEHIRE
The University holds 1 share of $500 (2017: 1 share of $500), representing 12.5% HAFEE—REES000T (ZF— 4 —REE5007T)
of the share capital of Joint Universities Computer Centre Limited, a company ZREBHEBHPOBARATRG BERZATRSNZ
providing computer services for the UGC-funded Higher Educational Institutions in 12.5%  Z AR EERHEEMBRETREGEYNEES
Hong Kong. EHERR -
The University has a 12.5% (2017: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, HARMEBREBHEWER ( [HBEER] ) 125% (=
in Joint University Programmes Admissions System (“JUPAS”) which was T—+F : 125%) #m CRERERAE) o LEER
incorporated on 18 September 1990 as a company limited by guarantee. The —NNZBFEAATNBRMELZ R —RERERAA -
purpose of the company is to administer and operate the joint admissions system HEMERRBEEANGER B BB L ER S W ET
for and on behalf of each member of the JUPAS. E
The University has a 12.5% interest in 2017, without investment cost, in Joint BAR-Z—LEFEHRZERTEES ([£8
Quiality Review Committee Limited (“JQRC") which was incorporated on 26 1) 12.5%e CRBIRERA) - WkIER =TT H
August 2005 as a company limited by guarantee. The company was dissolved by FNAZFRBFME A —ERRERAR - RER
deregistration on 8 December 2017. —E—tF+ = BN\ B HEEE -
The University has a 12.5% (2017: 12.5%) interest, without investment cost, HABEREBHEBEENEERRAA12.5% (=T
in JULAC Joint Universities Research Archive Limited which was incorporated —HF 1 12.5%) #wm CRBRERAE) « ZARRKR T
on 30 September 2011 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of ——FNA=tHEEME LA MERERAR - H
the company is to advance education and research, to establish, maintain and BERNEARTIREXHBEMMAR - RRARHESENNE
manage a repository of books, serials, periodicals, audiovisuals and other research BERNESE - BT REHEMAMEMHRERELE
materials from UGC funded institutions in Hong Kong and to provide library B DARTFRER - Wikt EZ RS o
facilities.
The University has a 9.1% (2017: 9.1%) interest, without investment cost, in The HABFEPEEBREREHEERAANI% (ZF
University Sports Federation of Hong Kong, China Limited which was incorporated —tF 1 9.1%) iz CRARERE) - ZRAR-E
on 23 March 2016 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the —ANEZAZF=AAMRA—HERERAR  H
company is to provide a platform for sports games among universities and tertiary BNERARENESHAKBE 2 HRHENEFTLEN
institutions, and to enhance sports performance and build up coherence among A BN AR FIESHIEB NRBMELT
the institutions and universities. e
(b) Investments in subsidiaries (2) KB A FINIRE
The University has a 100% (2017: 100%) interest, without investment cost, in The HRBFEEBYBEAZHMBERARAAZ100% (=8
EdUHK Schools Limited which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 14 December —+F 100%) #m ORBIRERAK) - hRRR—N
1998 as a company limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to plan, NN\FE+Z A+ BEESEME LA —BRERERA
establish and manage schools. Al HEMASE  BUREESR -
The University has a 100% (2017: 100%) interest, without investment cost, in BRI EERYER B ESEYELRARRAA
The EdUHK School of Continuing and Professional Education Limited (“EdUHK ( [HEHEZR]) 2100% (ZZ—+4F : 100%) #
SCPE") which was incorporated in Hong Kong on 28 June 2006 as a company i CRAIREKAE) - BARRZZERFAAZT+/\R
limited by guarantee. The purpose of the company is to set up, maintain and EEBFMK L A—HERERQR - ERZ AR
operate, in conjunction with the University for the promotion and advancement BAHATERSE  RERE  RNAHFERE - 7
of professional, technical and continuing education, foster and provide courses BANREBEEBFEUAR —REBAORE - & (EHEE
leading to awards as well as courses of general interest, and where appropriate, AT R|EBBMEINEEERE - HERERRB =
provide learning opportunities in or outside Hong Kong. The EAUHK SCPE has TERFLA-BE EREETHAETHREIEH
assumed the responsibilities and mission of the Division of Continuing Professional BEBHEEMED -
Education of the University since 1 July 2006.
The results of these subsidiaries are accounted for in the Group’s consolidated UL S B A R AT AR E BRSBTS |RERA -
financial statements.
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5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as at

30 June 2018

Held-to-maturity financial assets

REB-NFAA=THKN

TEEE
HERFHRemEE

Bank deposits with original maturity RZ|# B8 =18 A

over three months
Accounts receivable less

allowance for doubtful debts
Balances held at the investment

managers
Security deposits

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets as at

30 June 2017

Held-to-maturity financial assets

ZEBTER
FEU R OB =

RERBBZFE
WNRB IR TF TR

REZRS
BAREEFABED
EHMEE

R=ZB—tFXA=+THW

THEE
FERIHReRERE

Bank deposits with original maturity RE|H BB =183

over three months
Accounts receivable less

allowance for doubtful debts

Security deposits

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

ZEHER
JE U AR SR =
RIERIBZFE
REEE
BAREEFARED
ERMEE

Note
iz

6

10

5 SR TR (R¥A)
Group #&E

Financial assets at Held-to-

fair value through maturity

profit or loss financial assets
Receivables RARBEFA HEZEIHE Total
FEUR BRNEREE ERMEE it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt T Tt
- - 40,563 40,563
815,451 - - 815,451
78,647 - - 78,647
12,253 = = 12,253
3,062 - - 3,062
- 373,567 - 373,567
560,951 - - 560,951
1,470,364 373,567 40,563 1,884,494
- - 65,401 65,401
664,785 - - 664,785
63,305 - - 63,305
7,351 - - 7,351
- 1,274 - 1,274
965,584 - - 965,584
1,701,025 1,274 65,401 1,767,700
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5

36

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(CONTINUED)

Financial assets as at REZB-—NFEXRA=1THEHHN
30 June 2018 SBWEE
Held-to-maturity financial assets BEEIHASREE
Bank deposits with original maturity R2|Hi H 28 =& A
over three months ZEHFER

Accounts receivable less FEURBR TR &
allowance for doubtful debts REREHE 2 F R

Balances held at the investment IR E LI TF R R
managers

Security deposits REZRS

Financial assets at fair value BAREEFABRN
through profit or loss TREE

Cash and cash equivalents REFBRLEBY

Financial assets as at R=ZB—tFXA=1THW
30 June 2017 SREE

Held-to-maturity financial assets FHEZISEcREE
Bank deposits with original maturity RE|EIR BB =18A

over three months ZEHTFER
Accounts receivable less FEUBRROR &
allowance for doubtful debts REREBE 2 FRE
Amounts due from subsidiaries UK BT B A B FRIB
Security deposits REZRS
Financial assets at fair value BAREEFAEBRN
through profit or loss TREE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFLZEY
Financial liabilities as at RAB=+HNEREAE
30 June
Accounts payable, accruals FERTRRFR - FEEHRRIA
and others REAM

The Education University of Hong Kong / financial Report 2017/2018

Note
HizF

@)}

Note
HizF

5 @mIR (R¥) ()

University #X

Financial assets at Held-to-

fair value through maturity

profit or loss financial assets
Receivables BRAABEEFA HEZEIEE Total
R BRNEREE EMEE #E
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt Tt Tt
- - 40,563 40,563
798,051 - - 798,051
78,579 - - 78,579
12,253 - - 12,253
3,030 - - 3,030
- 373,567 - 373,567
544,589 - - 544,589
1,436,502 373,567 40,563 1,850,632
- - 65,401 65,401
664,785 - - 664,785
63,303 - - 63,303
4 - - 4
7,322 - - 7,322
- 1,274 - 1,274
935,941 - - 935,941
1,671,355 1,274 65,401 1,738,030

Group &

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Fr T
153,329 129,261

University # A
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
145,334 124,240
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6

7

HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS 6 BFEEIHeMEE
Group and University AEBERH K
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Unlisted, at amortised cost JEETT - B HEAK 40,563 65,401
Less: Current portion classified W mBEM SRR ARENEE
as current assets - (24,821)
40,563 40,580
BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY OVER 7 FEABA=ERAZENER
THREE MONTHS
Group A &E University # X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr T
Bank deposits with original [RE|EI H EB@31E A H
maturity over 3 months TEHIE K
Current portion BB
- Unpledged - FRAEIEH 809,451 658,785 792,051 658,785
- Pledged - BEHEIR 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
815,451 664,785 798,051 664,785

The effective interest rate on bank deposits with original maturity
over 3 months was 1.66% (2017: 1.29%) per annum. These

deposits have a weighted average maturity of 121 days (2017: 109

days).

The pledged bank deposits of $6,000,000 (2017: $6,000,000)
are used as securities for the Group’s and the University’s bank
overdraft facilities which have not been utilised for the years
ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.

[RE|EAB BB = A 6 F B1F R 8 E B F
T E1.66% (ZF—+HF - 1.29%) : FE
FRmMmEFEHESEA A1218 (ZT—+
& :109R)

EHIF36,000,0007T (=T —+4F -
6,000,0007T) BIEASKB RHAAREBEE_T
—NERZZE—tFENAZTALHBREE
MAREARRITISE X BRI o
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, DEPOSITS AND 8 BURER - e RFAMFRIE
PREPAYMENTS
Group A&H University #k
2018 2017 2018 2017
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ftaE Fr Fr Fr Fr
Accounts receivable FEUAR K 81,807 67,049 81,707 67,015
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (b)(Z) (3,160) (3,744) (3,128) (3,712)
(a) (FA) 78,647 63,305 78,579 63,303
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUH BB R R FKIB (c) (A) - = = 4
Balances held at the investment IR B SRR TR
managers ) (T) 12,253 - 12,253 -
Security deposits REBEE S 3,062 7,351 3,030 7,322
93,962 70,656 93,862 70,629
Prepayments TEfFRIA 7,901 6,194 7,711 5,842
101,863 76,850 101,573 76,471
The amount of security deposits expected to be recovered or R —F R LB SRR R E B RE
recognised as expense after more than one year is $2,637,000 He®EBAR2,637,000T (ZF—+t
(2017: $2,709,000). All of other accounts receivable, deposits % :2,709,0007T) ° HALMEMKERSN « KA
and prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised as ANFUREAEE —F ZARERER B
expenses within one year. e
(@)  Accounts receivable () AR
As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s and the University's E-F\FRA=ZTE ARERHK
accounts receivable of $4,296,000 (2017: $8,871,000) RHOE LA I A RAB KO IR KA
was past due but not impaired. These mainly relate to a 4,296,0007C (=F—+%:8,871,000
number of students and the HKSAR Government for whom L) WEHAEEESRETIFHR
there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of EREEORERBEFRITHRER
accounts receivable is as follows: 13 < UL SRR BRI D ATAN T -
Group F&E University # X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr FT Fr Fr
Not past due R EA 74,351 54,434 74,283 54,432
Past due by: B :
Within 3 months 3fEA AT 3,533 7,487 3,533 7,487
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBim3(E A E6EA 350 847 350 847
Over 6 months but within 12 months  #2iB61E 8181218 A R 278 368 278 368
Over 12 months Bid12ME A 135 169 135 169
4,296 8,871 4,296 8,871
78,647 63,305 78,579 63,303
The Education University of Hong Kong / financial Report 2017/2018
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8

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, DEPOSITS AND 8 BEURER - RERAMNREA (#)
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Allowance for doubtful debts (2) EWEREFERERE
As at 30 June 2018, except for the Group’s and the RZE—N\FARA=TH BRTAEH
University's bad debts written off directly to the respective RBREERAZERERBHED
statements of comprehensive income of $175,000 (2017: EAR$%E175,0000 (Z2—+5F:
Nil), the Group’s and the University’s accounts receivable of /) S AREERAANEEREL
$3,160,000 (2017: $3,744,000) and of $3,128,000 (2017: EEHE2HBENRURERS R
$3,712,000) respectively were impaired and full provision 3,160,0007T (—F—+%:3,744,000
has been made accordingly. These mainly relate to a number L) &3,128,000C (ZZE—+
of students for whom there are unexpected difficult financial F:3,712,00070)  WFEHIEETRHN
situations. The ageing of these receivables is as follows: HERFARSMEOER BN 2L - 1
JERGREV RIS AT AT -
Group A £H University # X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
Past due by: B -
Within 3 months BMEHAZIAT 919 1,685 919 1,685
Over 3 months but within 6 months B iE31E A E6fER 943 559 943 559
Over 6 months but within 12 months  Bi&61E A{E1218 A K 1,005 1,086 1,005 1,086
Over 12 months Bi@m121E A 293 414 261 382
3,160 3,744 3,128 3,712
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during JEN BR SR RER B B T -
the year is as follows:
Group A& H University Xk
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
Balance at 1 July 2017/2016 R-B—tF/IZT—KRF
+tA—BN&ER 3,744 4,463 3,712 4,431
Provision for impairment RAREAE 3,128 3,451 3,128 3,451
Receivables written off during A MR R
the year as uncollectible TeEds Bl ) FRIE (2,284) (2,631) (2,284) (2,631)
Reversal of provision for SRR
impairment (1,428) (1,539) (1,428) (1,539)
Balance at 30 June 2018/2017 R=B-N\F/I=F—tF
AAZ+THAWNER 3,160 3,744 3,128 3,712

A loss of $3,128,000 (2017: $3,451,000) for the
impairment of accounts receivable was recognised by the
Group and the University during the year ended 30 June
2018. The loss has been mainly included in office expenses
under Teaching and Research, Other Academic Services,
Management and General, and Student and General
Education Services in the statements of comprehensive
income, to the extent of $1,508,000 (2017: $1,576,000),
$151,000 (2017: $284,000), $1,358,000 (2017:
$1,359,000) and $111,000 (2017: $232,000) respectively.

HE-Z-N\FEXA=tTHLEE
7N 5 B I HhOK B AR FE AR AR DR
EE1E 53,128,000t (=T —+
#:3,451,0007T) < LLEEEFE
EATHKARNHERTT - HAih
B RS BB R —MEBEUAREE
R—EHRERBHOPNAERZA -
HEEH B A1,508,000T (ZF—+
% :1,576,0007T) ~151,0007C (=ZF
—+%F :284,0007) *1,358,0007T (
—Z—+1%:1,359,0007T) &%111,000
7T (ZZ—+%F :232,0007T) °
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8 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, DEPOSITS AND 8
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Allowance for doubtful debts (Continued)

The Group and the University have respectively reversed
previously made impairment provision of $1,428,000
(2017: $1,539,000) mainly due to subsequent settlement
of the corresponding accounts receivable and credited

to office expenses under Teaching and Research, Other
Academic Services, Management and General, and Student
and General Education Services in the Group’s and the
University’s statement of comprehensive income, to the
extent of $441,000 (2017: $697,000), $10,000 (2017:
$30,000), $796,000 (2017: $715,000) and $181,000
(2017: $97,000) respectively.

(c) Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts are unsecured and recoverable within 30
days. If balance is overdue, interest will be charged at
monthly savings account interest rate quoted by bank. At
the end of the reporting period, none of the amounts due
from subsidiaries was overdue.

(d) Balances held at the investment managers

The balances represent cash held temporarily at the external
investment managers for investment decision in-between.

9 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 9
PROFIT OR LOSS

Fixed income securities EE A EH

Equities [ES

- Listed in Hong Kong -EEB LM

- Listed outside Hong Kong - EEABAIN T

Investment in unlisted unit trust, JELEMEBAETRE
at fair value (BAREE)

As at 30 June 2018, the University invests in two investment
portfolios managed by investment managers. The University has
delegated the authority of making investment decision, within the
investment mandate stipulated by the University, to the investment
managers to manage the discretionary investment portfolios
created for the University. The breakdown of the investment
portfolios are included in the list above.

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in interest and net investment income in
the statement of comprehensive income (Note 23).

As at 30 June 2018, there are cash balances held in the two
investment portfolios by the University for investment decision in-
between and its details are disclosed in Note 8(d).
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R « BReERAMRIE (1)

(7)) FEWERHRERE (&)

AEBERBAARBBILC L EE R
RIEEEH1,428,000T0 (ZF—+
% :1,539,0007T) * F B E2HAHEEZ
FEMBRRBURE - 2 IEE TA R ER
mRPHERRT - M 2R &
BER—BEEAREE R—RBBERE
B AZEFRZA - BEED RI1441,0007T
(ZZ—+%:697,0007T) ~10,0007T
(ZZ—t4:30,0007T) 796,0007T
(ZZT—+%:715,0007T) %181,0007T
(ZZ—+tF:97,0007T) °

(A) B ARMRIE
IHETE FE U RUR SR 1R AN B A 30 B B
B ISR - AR
BRARETRFEFERNE - REH
I 7 4 160 A pE MR T B8 2 RIEO FRIE o

3

RIRELEIR R TF AR
MHERIETRERERTZME Y
BIFRIMPIRAERNR S -
BOAREGARENEVEE

Group and University ZRE@BRH A

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
FTr T
256,838 =
15,183 -
100,234 -
115,417 -
1,312 1,274
373,567 1,274

201856 A30H  HAFA M A MR AR
EREMKERS c BACDERZERELE
EHARENRERERENEREZREAR
ARBERERE - REMANFANES
BEELENFIRS -

BEARBEFABEHNEREENAAEE
FHEEMBERP AT B MIEEFIWE
(Bf7E23)

201856 A30H » HAEMEREME T
ERNEEMRSHE - FHERMES (T) -
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1

12

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at banks and in hand
Short-term bank deposits

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.72%
(2017: 0.24%) per annum. These deposits have a weighted

RITHEBRIARE
SEGEEEA

10 BHERASERY

Group <& H University # X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Fr Tt
171,105 296,740 164,465 290,501
389,846 668,844 380,124 645,440
560,951 965,584 544,589 935,941

RHETNERFNER1T72% (ZF—+t

average maturity of 45 days (2017: 9 days).

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUALS

Accounts payable
Accruals
Other deposits

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Receipts in advance

The Group and the University settle the accounts payable
according to payment due date. For remaining contractual
maturities of accounts payable, please refer to Note 2.1(c).

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of accounts payable
and accruals approximate their fair values as at 30 June 2018 and

2017.

PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Staff costs

Unutilised annual leave and others

Gratuities

Long service payment

Payable

Within 1 year
After 1 year

FERRRIR
e FRIA
Hitg e
JEAS P 8 2 R RO R
TAUGRIR

REEFR LM

HimiE
RHRBE

FERTR
—FRN
—Fi&

F:0.24%) - WEFRNIETHEEA R

458 (ZZ—tF :9R) -

11 EARRRERREA

Group &M@ University # X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fr Tt Fr T

87,206 79,316 78,586 73,780
63,295 46,678 63,209 46,582
2,828 3,267 2,828 3,267

- - 711 611
153,329 129,261 145,334 124,240
64,916 51,327 63,437 50,336
218,245 180,588 208,771 174,576

AEERHRERBENERRIHAE - BN
EREE - BARRORS H

BIMtsE2.1 (R) »

EWEM - F2

=z

FEN B AR FIRREERAMRE - Wik
BERIN - BEE-N\FR-T—LFEX
A=+ 8 - {8 B B 2 A BR SR R B AT AR
BENERSERE AR EERE -

12 (RRiEFIERH

Group A £H University & X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr TIT Fr Tt
78,736 78,495 78,736 78,495
37,110 41,192 37,110 41,192
500 605 309 367
116,346 120,292 116,155 120,054
103,371 107,141 103,180 106,903
12,975 13,151 12,975 13,151
116,346 120,292 116,155 120,054
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DEFERRED INCOME

Balance at 1 July 2017/2016

Subventions, grants and donations
received/receivable

Recognised
during the year

Transfer to deferred
capital funds

Balance at 30 June 2018/2017

Balance representing:

University

Earmarked Grants

- Research

- Immersion

- Home Financing Scheme

- Housing-related benefits other
than Home Financing Scheme

- Others

Capital Grants and Alterations,
Additions, Repairs and
Improvements Block Allocation

Donations with designated
purposes

Grants from government and
other agencies

Subsidiary

Earmarked Grants
- Others

Note
HizE

R-B—tF/I=T—RF

tA—BM&EEF
BR/EROHIE
REFE AR

ERSFEEEAES
14

R-E—NF/=Z2—tF
NA=ZTEMER

Note
Kt

BB
E- O

HRERR

- %

- R

- EPTE BT E

- FEMEBEEZ
B ERMERX L

- Hfh

EpREs oz - i
RO E TR AR

(a) (FF)
B B EL b i R R
(b) (Z2)

bt A

HRERR
- ity

(@) Grants received are initially recorded in deferred income under donations with

designated purposes and then recognised as income to the extent of their
respective expenditures. The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust (“the

Trust”) approved funding of $10,500,000 for the Group’s project “Supporting
and Maximising Individual Learning Efficacy (“SMILE")", $62,518,000 for the

project “CoolThink@JC-Computational Thinking Education (”CoolThink@
JC")", $31,880,000 for the project “C-for-Chinese@JC" and $16,500,000

for the project “Jockey Club From Words to Culture Programme: An

Animated Way to Learn Chinese (“Programme”)”. Included in donations
with designated purposes, the Group received grants from the Trust in an
accumulated amount of $10,046,000 (2017: $6,510,000) for the project
SMILE, $4,046,000 (2017: Nil) for the project CoolThink@JC, $2,225,000

13 BEWIA
Group A5&E University # X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr T
305,442 323,710 305,412 323,618
1,129,185 1,114,255 1,096,690 1,086,332
(1,019,516) (1,022,704) (989,270) (995,699)
(91,502) (109,819) (89,576) (108,839)
323,609 305,442 323,256 305,412
Group A&H University X

2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T F T
18,810 20,362 18,810 20,362
27,550 27,676 27,550 27,676
83,998 84,852 83,998 84,852
40,160 37,736 40,160 37,736
34,563 33,267 34,563 33,267
27,115 3,926 27,115 3,926
82,135 87,879 82,135 87,879
8,925 9,714 8,925 9,714
323,256 305,412 323,256 305,412
353 30 - =
323,609 305,442 323,256 305,412

(F) WEIOBRMIERBABRTCRARERTERBRZE

o RBEMBEIHEES AT ERARA - BEE

Sersaaits ([ZER]) HEATEEDN

[EGeiasta) (I428)) . [#5eE%

BHHANE) ([BERH))  [BEFERE

(2017: Nil) for the project C-for-Chinese@JC, $1,375,000 (2017: Nil) for the
Programme and there was no unutilised balance as at 30 June 2018 (2017:

Nil) for all these projects.
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ZhxstEll ([RE])E [BEEH [ [
gLBea] ([8 [xX] RgE]) 2RREES
10,500,0007T ~ 62,518,0007T * 31,880,0007C &
16,500,0007C ° AL B 258 - EH BT
- RBHEIRE [X] MEHEDRIKREIZES
2 5010,046,0005T (ZZF—+4F : 6,510,000
JC) * 4,046,0007T (=T —+H4 : #) + 2,225,000
L (ZZT—+F ) %1,375,000T (=T —+
FE) RZZT—)\FEXA=+H " FETE~R
BRAER (ZF—+HF - &) -
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13 DEFERRED INCOME (CONTINUED)

(b) Balance of grants from government and other agencies includes the unspent
balances of the following funding:

(i) The unspent balance of Matching grants under the Pilot Scheme to
subsidise post-secondary students for Mainland China experience and its
details are disclosed in Note 21(b).

(i) Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange for Post-secondary Students (“the SSE”)

The Education Bureau (“EDB") of HKSAR Government has started the
SSE since 2014/15 to subsidise financially needy students participating in
exchange programmes. The University has duly complied with the terms
and conditions for the use of funding under the SSE as set out in the
Operating Guide. The funding received and the expenditure of the SSE
and the unspent balance are disclosed as follows:

Balance at 1 July 2017/2016 R-B—tF/=F—"FLtA—BNER
Income KA
Grants received/(refunded) Bl GRE) fhe
Interest/investment income FLERFE F
Expenditure i
Programme costs EENE
Others Hftb
Balance at 30 June 2018/2017 R-B-N\F/=Z—tFXA=+ANEE

(iii) Scheme for Subsidy on Exchange to Belt and Road Regions for Post-
secondary Students (“the SSEBR")

In 2015/16, the EDB has started the SSEBR to subsidise financially needy
students participating in exchange activities held in the Belt and Road
Region. The University has duly complied with the terms and conditions
for the use of funding under SSEBR as set out in the Operating Guide.
The funding received and the expenditure of the SSEBR and the unspent
balance are disclosed as follows:

Balance at 1 July 2017/2016 R-B—tF/—FB—RFtA—HNERF
Income A
Grants (refunded)/received (RE) EWmE2
Interest/investment income LB RILE F
Expenditure T
Programme costs mENE A
Others Hh
Balance at 30 June 2018/2017 R-B-NF/I—E—tEXA=+ANES

13

BIEW A (#8)

(2) BFRAMEEBEREE T IS

(—) BrEERMERTETEREURBERE
BEEEHVIRKE21(2) °

HEBEABINZIREEE
BERTRERER ([#BER]) R=F—
M/ —hFEREHE FBEEINIREDE

([ZetEl]) KB AEBEREE 2 S E2N
EED - BB AT IR E IR E P AR
PG R BRI - Z T BIROMERIM A R S H A4
AR ELNT

Group and University 2B RH A

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
F T
243 4,449
2,283 (2,981)
2,283 (2,981)
755 1,225
755 1,225
1,771 243

(2) BLBA R wEXRA S

REZB—R/—R"FE HERKHS—HL2
&[] WERREBE S ([
FHEIL) EABAKERE 2 BESNZRE
B o B — R BIR (R TFORE
FREHR R ARR - — & —BEFTBIR IR A B2
AR AL T -

Group and University 2B R H A

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Fr T
1,149 1,768
(12) =
(12) =
396 619
396 619
741 1,149
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DEFERRED CAPITAL FUNDS

Balance at 1 July 2016

Transfer from deferred income

Transfers

Release to statement of
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2017
and at 1 July 2017

Transfer from deferred income

Transfers

Release to statement of
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2018

Balance at 1 July 2016

Transfer from deferred income

Transfers

Release to statement of
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2017
and at 1 July 2017

Transfer from deferred income

Transfers

Release to statement of
comprehensive income

Balance at 30 June 2018

R=ZT—XR"F¥tHA—H
HEE

#ERIRERA

LR

BAZEUEE

R=Z—tFXA=+H
kR=Z—t5tHA—H
HEE

BEIREERA

LR

BAZEUEE

RZZE-N\FXA=1H
HEEF

R=Z—XFtH—H
W&

BERERA

ELECH

BAZEEERK

R=ZF—tFXA=1+H
rR=—Z2—+t&+tH—H
W17

#EHIRLEHRA

4

BAZEEER

R=ZF—N\FXA=1+H
WEE

14 EBESFES
Group F&E
Leasehold  Fixtures and Construction

Buildings improvements  equipment  in progress Total

BT HEWMERE KERRE EETR kL]

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Pt et Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
1,635,142 132,162 67,779 15,072 1,850,155

13 - 20,711 27,362 61,746 109,819
- 54,437 - (54,437) -
(47,675) (40,575) (24,899) - (113,149)
1,587,467 166,735 70,242 22,381 1,846,825

13 - 25,044 15,452 51,006 91,502
- 34,663 685 (35,348) -
(47,675) (48,383) (25,344) - (121,402)
1,539,792 178,059 61,035 38,039 1,816,925

University # X
Leasehold  Fixtures and Construction

Buildings improvements ~ equipment in progress Total

By MEWMERE HKEREE EEIRE HaFE

Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
izt Fit T Tt Tt Tt
1,632,567 128,812 67,351 15,072 1,843,802

13 - 20,318 26,775 61,746 108,839
- 54,437 - (54,437) -

(47,602) (39,759) (24,519) - (111,880)
1,584,965 163,808 69,607 22,381 1,840,761

13 - 24,082 14,488 51,006 89,576
- 34,663 685 (35,348) -

(47,602) (47,431) (24,724) - (119,757)
1,537,363 175,122 60,056 38,039 1,810,580
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15 UGCFUNDS

Note
Bt
Balance at 1 July 2016 R-Z-X"FLtA—BNEE
Transfer from/(to) statement of #y/(2) 2Ekak
comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer HEMER 16
Balance at 30 June 2017 R=B—tERA=THR
and at 1 July 2017 —E2—tFLtA-BHWERF
Transfer from/(to) statement of #y/(2) 2Ekak
comprehensive income
Inter-fund transfer HEMER 16

Balance at 30 June 2018

R-B-N\FRA=+THNER

General and development reserve fund (“GDRF")
represents the unspent UGC funds (i.e. the recurrent grants
other than earmarked grants for specified purpose) of the
University. The balance of GDRF at the end of the funding
period (usually a triennium) that can be carried over to

the next funding period is limited to a maximum of 20%
of the approved recurrent grants for the University other
than the earmarked grants for specific purposes for that
funding period. Should the balance of GDRF at the end of
the funding period exceed the ceiling allowed, the excess
amount is refundable to the UGC.

Matching grant funds are funds granted by the HKSAR
Government on a matching basis for qualified private
donations raised by the University. The matching grants
can be used for supporting activities within the ambit of
UGC-recurrent grants. Details of income or expenditure
incurred for the Matching Grant Scheme are shown in Note
21(a).

HEEZHES
Group and University Z&EE KK
General and
development Matching
reserve fund grant funds
—MREERE [IRESEE s Total
FEES & k)
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Tt T+t

(Note a) (Note b)

(HI=ERR) (FF=EZ)

419,928 99,402 519,330
83,771 (9,837) 73,934
(12,445) - (12,445)

491,254 89,565 580,819
29,454 (7,600) 21,854
(15,904) - (15,904)

504,804 81,965 586,769

() —REREFEH#EES ([FEE2])

BHROARRESER (ARTEMT
BaR o BT BRI S A E B
) o REESNERE GBF A=
FEmirrsaes (TEEET —E%
HE) HE T BBERENEE IR
BRI A& TR
#20% ° INRFEFBESNBGIER
) A AR B P A AT R LR - R
SRARETHES -

S EE SRR B RTTHIRER
FHZH ARG ERMAZHRRE - UF
HEHOOABERNES - BREHE)
SR AREDHESEEEAREE
WNEGES) - BCE B E S AT RIARRIYK
ARZHEFFIRHE21 (F) -
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16  RESTRICTED FUNDS 16 EEES

Group and University Z&E@BRZH A

Endowment funds BZ&E & (Note a) (HH:EF)

Cheung’s  Shun Hing Wing Lung
Family ~ Education Lady Bank Student Unspent
Matching Charity  and Charity Ivy Wu Li & Fung Exchange balance for
grant funds Funds Funds  Scholarship Scholarships  Scholarship research
[REakEIeA RX  FEHER [EEa Flg kERiTRE Sub-total ARRAHE Total
-5 EEES fot-5 #2e BBE JnERE PE (52 it

Note ~ $'000  §'000 ~ $000  §000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $'000
M T T T T T T T T T

(Note b)
(32,
Balance at 1 July 2016 R-B-<FtA
—BH&R 20,879 3,117 5,428 6,106 4,021 511 40,062 40,955 81,017
Transfer (to)/from statement @ (%) /8
of comprehensive income 2EMER (208) 16 (25) 12 8 6 (191) s (191)
Inter-fund transfer EeMER 15 - - - - - - - 12,445 12,445
Balance at 30 June 2017 and R=Z—tF XA
at 1 July 2017 =t8ER
—E2—t&+tA
—HNER 20,671 3,133 5,403 6,118 4,029 517 39,871 53,400 93,271
Transfer from/(to) statement & H/ (F)
of comprehensive income PREKER 135 1 9 7 (5) (4) 153 - 153
Inter-fund transfer HE4 R 15 - - - - - - - 15904 15,904
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZZE-NEXA
=+ BMNEE 20,806 3,144 5,412 6,125 4,024 513 40,024 69,304 109,328
(@) Endowment funds represent grants and donations on (F) HBAESEHARBIEEENIHAR
which the University would, according to the wishes of BELNALE  WERBELSHE
the donors, keep the principal intact and only use income AR AR s T AR RIE
generated from the fund to support activities of designated B o
purposes.
(b) Unspent balance for research represents the balances of () KAWREHRERIETETRARE
general and development reserve fund designated for THE AR —BERREREES L
different research projects. Inter-fund transfer between #h o ETHL HEMESEHESL VM
restricted funds and UGC funds represents the net balance WESHEERZEAFE RS EHE
of funds set aside for specific research projects during THEESESHZESHEEA FiE
the year and expenditure incurred under these research A R EAFEE o
projects.
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17 OTHER FUNDS 17 HthES
Group F&E
Other Donations
operation and
reserves benefactions Total
Hith B B KIBE Rk
$'000 $'000 $'000
T Fit T
(Note a) (Note b)
(FFRERR) (FF7EZ)
Balance at 1 July 2016 R-ZB-—XREtA-BNEE 408,684 33,876 442,560
Transfer from statement of e arEkaEx
comprehensive income 37,140 19,685 56,825
Balance at 30 June 2017 R-Z—tFXA=THRK
and at 1 July 2017 —E—+tHE+LtA-HNEE 445,824 53,561 499,385
Transfer from statement of EErEER
comprehensive income 35,783 8,007 43,790
Balance at 30 June 2018 R=F-N\EARA=THNER 481,607 61,568 543,175
University # X
Other Donations
operation and
reserves benefactions Total
Hith & E B KIBE) Fek e
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Fi Fr
(Note a) (Note b)
(PZERR) (H3EZ)
Balance at 1 July 2016 R-B—XFLtA—BNER 386,167 33,406 419,573
Transfer from statement of Ea2EkER
comprehensive income 36,215 19,685 55,900
Balance at 30 June 2017 R-ZE—tFXA=1+HR
and at 1 July 2017 —E-tFtA-BNER 422,382 53,091 475,473
Transfer from statement of EEREIER
comprehensive income 34,863 8,007 42,870
Balance at 30 June 2018 R-ZB-NEXA=1+HWEF 457,245 61,098 518,343
(a) Other operation reserves are funds other than those (F) EHEEEREATIMNE (Z) M
described in Note (b) below, Notes 15 and 16. They are 15 R M EE16 Tl LASN E & - WET S
used to finance the Group’s activities in general. RERAEEN —REDRHES -
(b) Donations and benefactions represent the reserves of non- () BEREBHEIGRETHEREE S
refundable donations from the donors. REER -
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18

NON-UGC-FUNDED OPERATIONS

Income
Government subventions
Tuition, programmes and other fees
Donations and benefactions
Auxiliary services
Interest and net investment income
Other income

Expenditure

Teaching, learning and research
Teaching and research
Library
Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses
Student and general education

services

Surplus/(deficit) and total
comprehensive income for
the year before transfers

48

SEGMENT REPORT FOR UGC-FUNDED AND

18
SERE

Group &M@

HRERVWRFNEIEEMTDN

Inter-segment
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded transaction
activities activities elimination 2018
HEES FHEE Sub-total MMz Net total
BEEE BENEE NEE RHEH ot o)
Self- Non-UGC-
financing funded
activities research Donation Other
BEABZ activities activities activities
A RHES BENES HiniEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fir Fr Fr Fr Fr
(Note b)
(PH3EZ)
A
B2 968,863 49,979 8,730 - 37,509 1,065,081 - 1,065,081
BE . RRNEMKE 273,740 220,428 - 2,163 13,258 509,589 (612) 508,977
BRRIEY - - 2,388 64,455 47 66,890 (4) 66,886
B ARTS 7,556 29,107 2 45 535 37,245 (963) 36,282
B RIGEF 7,497 594 6 1,462 2,093 11,652 - 11,652
HA 5,468 7,009 10,270 703 3,059 26,509 (84) 26,425
1,263,124 307,117 21,396 68,828 56,501 1,716,966 (1,663) 1,715,303
S|
2 . EffRHAR
HREBRFE 699,362 145234 20,706 49,875 60,959 976,136 (1,080) 975,056
B 52,352 5,561 s 914 291 59,118 3) 59,115
HRE R 71,659 7,075 - - 735 79,469 - 79,469
H 1t BT AR TS 54,113 7,906 - - 388 62,407 (242) 62,165
HELR
EER—MEBE 72,800 28,282 2,160 424 575 104,241 () 104,237
R& KBRS 239,877 14,557 - 2,970 3,580 260,984 (177) 260,807
B4R —WHRE R
50,972 36,718 = 6,524 14,600 108,814 (157) 108,657
1,241,135 245,333 22,866 60,707 81,128 1,651,169 (1,663) 1,649,506
ERALEERE (FHE)
REEWGAE
21,989 61,784 (1,470) 8,121  (24,627) 65,797 s 65,797
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18 SEGMENT REPORT FOR UGC-FUNDED AND 18 HEEZTHRFENIEEZHIHH
NON-UGC-FUNDED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) SEEE ()
Group &M@
Inter-segment
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded transaction
activities activities elimination 2017
HE" FHEE Sub-total #EEz  Net total
EHES EHES N RSB k)
Self- Non-UGC-
financing funded
activities research Donation Other
BRREZ activities activities activities
& REHES) BEES HiEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T T
(Note b)
(ftzE2)
Income LON
Government subventions BT 2 970,072 44,373 10,946 - 30,694 1,056,085 - 1,056,085
Tuition, programmes and other fees 2% - RIZAMEMUE 265201 222,011 - 1,711 12,076 500,999 (642) 500,357
Donations and benefactions B RIEE - s 1,265 70,873 339 72,477 - 72,477
Ausxiliary services B 2B AR 7% 8,424 27,585 5 64 279 36,357 (968) 35,389
Interest and net investment income L2 k1% F iz 10,804 787 5 1,708 1,978 15,282 - 15,282
Other income HeA 4,864 6,949 7,898 536 2,840 23,087 (135) 22,952
1,259,365 301,705 20,119 74,892 48,206 1,704,287 (1,745) 1,702,542
Expenditure X
Teaching, learning and research e . EfRAR
Teaching and research HERARE 655,912 145,270 17,921 41,959 53,043 914,105 (925) 913,180
Library BEE 47,700 6,344 - 1,985 153 56,182 (5) 56,177
Central computing facilities HRB R 71,381 7,431 - - 681 79,493 - 79,493
Other academic services H b BT AR 52,804 8,757 - - 220 61,781 (357) 61,424
Institutional support HEZR
Management and general EER—MKER 64,731 27,009 2,106 1,145 990 95,981 9) 95,972
Premises and related expenses REREERX 241,869 14,542 23 2,557 3,707 262,698 (257) 262,441
Student and general education B4R —RHERE
services 51,242 35,805 - 7,603 8,829 103,479 (192) 103,287
1,185,639 245,158 20,050 55,249 67,623 1,573,719 (1,745) 1,571,974
Surplus/(deficit) and total ERALFEERS (FE)
comprehensive income for ReEbEAR
the year before transfers 73,726 56,547 69 19,643 (19,417) 130,568 - 130,568
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18 SEGMENT REPORT FOR UGC-FUNDED AND 18 HEEZTHRFENIEEZHIHH
NON-UGC-FUNDED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) SEEE ()
University # X
Inter-segment
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded transaction
activities activities elimination 2018
HE" FHEE Sub-total #HE@Ez  Net total
EHES EENEE N RSEH ot
Self- Non-UGC-
financing funded
activities research Donation Other
BRREZ activities activities activities
& RHEE BEES HiEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fit T T T T T Fr
(Note b)
()
Income LON
Government subventions BT 2 968,863 49,979 8,730 = 5,799 1,033,371 - 1,033,371
Tuition, programmes and other fees 2% - RIPAMEMUE 273,740 220,426 - 2,163 2,923 499,252 (612) 498,640
Donations and benefactions BB - S 2,388 64,455 = 66,843 4 66,839
Auxiliary services B 2B AR S 7,556 29,107 2 45 535 37,245 (819) 36,426
Interest and net investment income  fll 8 RIREF 7,497 453 6 1,462 2,038 11,456 = 11,456
Other income HiA 5,468 6,962 10,270 703 1,976 25,379 (45) 25,334
1,263,124 306,927 21,396 68,828 13,271 1,673,546 (1,480) 1,672,066
Expenditure X
Teaching, learning and research e . EfRAR
Teaching and research HERARE 699,362 145,208 20,706 49,875 20,646 935,797 (950) 934,847
Library BE8E 52,352 5,561 - 914 291 59,118 (3) 59,115
Central computing facilities HRB R 71,659 7,075 - - 735 79,469 - 79,469
Other academic services Hofty BT RS 54,113 7,906 - - 388 62,407 (242) 62,165
Institutional support HELR
Management and general EER—KREE 72,800 28,274 2,160 424 388 104,046 (4) 104,042
Premises and related expenses & RARRR X 239,877 14,504 - 2,970 1,668 259,019 (124) 258,895
Student and general education B4R —WHRE RS
services 50,972 36,718 - 6,524 14,599 108,813 (157) 108,656
1,241,135 245,246 22,866 60,707 38,715 1,608,669 (1,480) 1,607,189
Surplus/(deficit) and total ERALFEERS (FE)
comprehensive income for ReEbEAR
the year before transfers 21,989 61,681 (1,470) 8,121 (25,444) 64,877 - 64,877
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18 SEGMENT REPORT FOR UGC-FUNDED AND 18 HEEZTHRFENIEEZHIHH
NON-UGC-FUNDED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) SEEE ()
University A
Inter-segment
UGC-funded Non-UGC-funded transaction
activities activities elimination 2017
HES FHEE Sub-total %Mz Net total
EHES EHES N RSEH k)
Self- Non-UGC-
financing funded
activities research Donation Other
BRREZ activities activities activities
& REHES) BENEE HiEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T T
(Note b)
(ftzE2)
Income LON
Government subventions BT S 970,072 44,373 10,946 = 2,549 1,027,940 - 1,027,940
Tuition, programmes and other fees 2% « RIFAMEMUE 265201 222,009 - 1,711 2,652 491,573 (642) 490,931
Donations and benefactions BB - - 1,265 70,873 - 72,138 - 72,138
Auxiliary services bt 18 AR A% 8,424 27,585 5 64 279 36,357 (817) 35,540
Interest and net investment income Il 2 k% & F Uiz 10,804 729 5 1,708 1,941 15,187 - 15,187
Other income HiA 4,864 6,941 7,898 536 1,686 21,925 (71) 21,854
1,259,365 301,637 20,119 74,892 9,107 1,665,120 (1,530) 1,663,590
Expenditure X
Teaching, learning and research e . EfRAR
Teaching and research HERME 655,912 145,231 17,921 41,959 16,955 877,978 (763) 877,215
Library EEEE 47,700 6,344 - 1,985 153 56,182 (5) 56,177
Central computing facilities HRB R 71,381 7,431 - - 681 79,493 - 79,493
Other academic services H b BT AR S 52,804 8,757 - s 220 61,781 (357) 61,424
Institutional support HELR
Management and general EER—KREE 64,731 27,004 2,106 1,145 806 95,792 9) 95,783
Premises and related expenses & RARRR X 241,869 14,489 23 2,557 1,835 260,773 (204) 260,569
Student and general education B4R —WHE R
services 51,242 35,805 - 7,603 8,828 103,478 (192) 103,286
1,185,639 245,061 20,050 55,249 29,478 1,535,477 (1,530) 1,533,947
Surplus/(deficit) and total ERALFEERS (FE)
comprehensive income for ReEbEAR
the year before transfers 73,726 56,576 69 19,643 (20,371) 129,643 - 129,643

(@) Disclosures regarding segment report are included as a requirement of the
SORP are not designed to fully comply with the requirements of HKFRS 8,
Operating segments.

(b) Inter-segment transactions mainly included internal rental transactions.

(c) Cost allocation practices for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities
(i) The University determines the basis of allocation of costs between UGC-

funded and non-UGC-funded activities with reference to the UGC Notes
on Procedures.

(i) The classification of UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities is
based on the funding source of the activities. The direct costs of the
UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities are both charged fully and
directly to the respective activities.

(F) ARAERENRBEDZAAEGWZHEER - T
ETERBEBYHMELAESS [ZEHH]
ZIREMAREL °

(2) PERZXZEEBEAPESRHER -

() REGEDTFHESEBEBHIKA D
(—) BARBHES [EFEE] SEHEASED

SIFHE G A EE) 2 MR D FEAE o

(Z) BHEGEDIEREGENEDNDIERE
HNWESHRRRER - MEERARHESRE
ENEB M E R EBEBNRA - BIARF
EBE B RBURE -
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18 SEGMENT REPORT FOR UGC-FUNDED AND
NON-UGC-FUNDED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Cost allocation practices for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities
(Continued)

(iii) To avoid hidden subsidy to non-UGC-funded activities, the University, as
a matter of principle, levies overhead charges on such activities according
to the University’s internal guidelines, including projects funded by other
government departments/agencies and projects/programmes conducted
by its self-financing arms.

(iv) When determining the level of overhead charges to be levied, the
University has reflected the full costs of the non-UGC-funded activities
concerned.

(v) The University may waive overhead charges and/or faculty principal
investigators costs, in whole or in part, or take on research or other
projects where charging full overheads and/or faculty principal
investigators costs is not possible because of the rules imposed by the
funding agency, if the University is satisfied that the value of the projects

18 HEERDRIFVBEEHETDHH
SREE ()
) HARAHIFRARAYEDORADE (4)

(2) RRBRRMIFREGEBHEDY - BARA
LEREHAONEIES] - HELED (25
HBFEFI/EBENNIRE RBAEER
ERRFOIRB/RE) WEEEER -

(M) BAREETRMOMERAKFE Bt RE

WA GBI 2HA -

LR EMIER &R ERE AN
Al Tee2 gk REZER R/ RBR AR
REEM - HARGREBELHFTKAMERZ
CHMBMBERMA THHIEIE - #MRELE
BaRdmMoMERERR/XBREFMEE

B
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to its academic development justifies exceptional treatment. A -
19 GOVERNMENT SUBVENTIONS 19 BFER
Group AR&EH University X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr Tt
Subventions from UGC BESRX
Block/Recurrent Grants BEE /I IR 830,057 829,629 830,057 829,629
Earmarked Grants HETE R 36,027 42,381 36,027 42,381
Home Financing Scheme JEFTEBhETE 854 1,248 854 1,248
Earmarked for Pension Top-up MRS 2,577 2,885 2,577 2,885
Earmarked Language HRIE B SUIIR AR A2
Immersion Programmes 4,546 7,377 4,546 7,377
Research projects HRIER 18,200 19,182 18,200 19,182
Housing-related benefits FEMEGEIZER
other than Home RFAEREE
Financing Scheme 1,661 2,086 1,661 2,086
Upgrading of Language Teaching RABSHENBERE
& Learning Facilities 22 24 22 24
Knowledge Transfer % 2,336 2,445 2,336 2,445
Teaching and Learning HEBEBNIEZ
related initatives 3,517 2,635 3,517 2,635
Other Earmarked Grants HbIEERRK 2,314 4,499 2,314 4,499
Government rent and R EIHFE R Z
rates refund 11,415 11,493 11,415 11,493
Capital Grants and Alterations, BB RGE - g -
Additions, Repairs and SRS TR
Improvements Block Allocation 91,364 86,569 91,364 86,569
968,863 970,072 968,863 970,072
Grants from government agencies BfF##E R 96,218 86,013 64,508 57,868
1,065,081 1,056,085 1,033,371 1,027,940
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20 TUITION, PROGRAMMES AND OTHER FEES

UGC - funded programmes
Tuition fees
Programmes and other fees

Non - UGC - funded
programmes
Tuition fees
Programmes and other fees

HESEHRE
2%
EREISER Ly
FHUEEEHRE

2%

A2 R EL AU R

21 DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS

Capital projects
Scholarships, prizes and bursaries
Donations for academic activities

HEHA
RET  RENPEE
HBINEBER

(@) Matching Grant Scheme

The HKSAR Government launched the Sixth Matching
Grant Scheme for the period from 1 August 2012 to 31
July 2014 for 17 statutory post-secondary institutions and
approved post-secondary colleges to match the donations
secured by them. Donations paid to the University during
the stated period are eligible for such matching grants.

20 28 -FENMEMGRE
Group A £H University & X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr T
261,874 255,176 261,874 255,176
11,866 10,025 11,866 10,025
226,429 227,029 216,094 217,605
8,808 8,127 8,806 8,125
508,977 500,357 498,640 490,931
21 ERRIAL
Group #&E University # X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr T
3,709 4,181 3,662 4,053
5,618 5,010 5,618 5,010
57,559 63,286 57,559 63,075
66,886 72,477 66,839 72,138

(F)  EHwEBhestE
EEFNTRRBEAN-F——FN
A—RAE-Z-WFELA=1+—0H
RN 7TRDEE R F LA g
THENm (A esE] - A
HERERBITEEMSNER - #KX
RZHHERMO BTG S ERK2
HZRCH B ERTE
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21 DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) Matching Grant Scheme (Continued)

21

All matching grants and matched donations were used for

supporting activities within the ambits of UGC recurrent

grants.

Details of the related income or expenditure incurred for

the matching grants and matched donations are shown

below.

Balance at 1 July

Income
Donations/grants (refunded)
Interest/investment income
Miscellaneous income

Expenditure

Teaching and research
enhancement

Internationalisation and
student exchange activities

Scholarships and prizes

Bursaries

Student development

Others

Transfer (to) /from endowment
funds under restricted funds

Balance at 30 June

Note:

i.  All expenditures were incurred
on degree and above level of
studies.

ii. ~ Unspent balance of
$81,965,000 (2017:
$89,565,000) is included in
matching grant funds under
UGC funds and unspent
balance of $59,733,000
(2017: $68,183,000) is
included in donations and
benefactions under other
funds, endowment funds
under restricted funds and
donations with designated
purposes under deferred
income.

Note
e
REtA—BNER
WA
(GRE) B/HBE
FIERFEF
E AU A

X (i) (—)
KRB R
BEAR BB BB A 2R A B
BhES

BARR
HoA

B (®)/BEEESAZEARES

RWARA=+HMERE (i) (=)

Hfat -

— BEXHG RSBt R B
WM -

=. 81,965,0007T (= F—+4F :
89,565,000) #BFEEE
EREH#HH2ELA
59,733,0007T (= F—+% :
68,183,0007T) B FE B EE
HEBELRZIEHRIEEL - 15
TEDAZ EAE D FELEK
AR BIEEREZIEH -
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BRBRIEY (1)
(F) BYWMHSHE @)

P 76 TiC 5 4 Bh & RN BT 4 69 48 R AT
EAERE SR T HERBE NG

&) o

HERCH RO IR SR AL S 78 B & O AR R AR
ARSHFBIT

Group and University ZREBRH KA

2018 2017

Matching Matched Matching Matched
grants donations grants donations
REmEhe  BREHMIBXR BB e EEHMER
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
89,565 68,183 99,402 79,157
(20) (20) = -

947 976 1,318 1,248

416 2,002 940 1,550
1,343 2,958 2,258 2,798
1,174 5,902 1,994 7,015
2,874 102 2,803 401
3,018 903 5,540 638

- 20 - 45

419 399 535 573
1,323 3,850 1,431 4,757
8,808 11,176 12,303 13,429
(135) (232) 208 (343)
81,965 59,733 89,565 68,183
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21 DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary
Students (“the Pilot Scheme™)

The Pilot Scheme is a five-year scheme launched by the
EDB in 2011/12 to subsidise post-secondary students
participating in short-term internship or learning
programmes in Mainland China on a matching basis. The
University has duly complied with the terms and conditions

for the matching and use of matching grants under the
Pilot Scheme as set out in the Operating Guide.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the related income or
expenditure incurred for the Pilot Scheme are shown below.

Note
iz
Balance at 1 July 2017 R-EB—tE+LA-ANETR
Income 'ON
Donations/grants received BRUMEE
Miscellaneous income EAb A
Interest and investment income B RIEE Fzx
Expenditure 3]
Programme fee TEENE R
Others EHAth
Balance at 30 June 2018 R-B-NEXA=1+ANESE (i (=)

21

R BRE (#7)

(2)

ErE4RmEREGiTE ([£8
stEll)

EEABREBFRTREBRHA
BR =T ——/——FEHEMHTF
g UERHTERE AR E B4R
A2 INEHEENBEES - HK
BRAEFBIREEETREEHDE

HBCET T £ P ek B AR A

RBE-Z-NFRA=T

H b5

[E - BT R 18 R K A
Bh & MR A R ST F BT ¢

Group and University ZEER#H A

Matching Matched
grants donations

fc B & ERCH IR
$'000 $'000

T T

2,219 1,047

429 -

- 684

429 684

1,790 363

BEEBHBENRE / 2017/2018 HERE
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21 DONATIONS AND BENEFACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Pilot Mainland Experience Scheme for Post-secondary
Students (“the Pilot Scheme”) (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2017, the related income
or expenditure incurred for the Pilot Scheme are shown
below.

Note
HizE

Balance at 1 July 2016 R-ZB-AELtA—ANETR

Income A
Donations/grants received B E
Miscellaneous income EAbA
Interest and investment income B RIRE F W

Expenditure X
Programme fee EENE
Others Al

Balance at 30 June 2017 R-E—tEXA=+HNEE (i) (=)

Note e -
i.  The matched donation is for — BEHOEAEHREHAE

21 BREREH (#)

(Z) ErEAENMERLEHB([EEE
2 &
RBE-E—tFEAA=+BLF
S BRI R R
B & MBI R BT

Group and University Z&E@BRZH A

Matching Matched
grants donations
[REaEEY kA VESTESEEEN
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
1,346 569
1,044 2,089

21 11

1,065 2,100
192 533

- 1,089

192 1,622

2,219 1,047

56

supporting the development of
the University.

Unspent balances of
$1,790,000 (2017:
$2,219,000) and $363,000
(2017: $1,047,000) are
included in grants from
government and other
agencies and donations with
designated purposes under
deferred income respectively.

=5

1,790,0007T (= F —+ F :
2,219,0007t) K 363,000 (=
T— 4 :1,047,0007T) B4 TF
ERFIEEEELRARNZ BT
REMBEERANEEEHARZ
B
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22  AUXILIARY SERVICES

Student hostels

Rental income

Rental contribution from staff
Others

23  INTEREST AND NET INVESTMENT INCOME

Net realised and unrealised (loss)/
gain from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Interest income

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain

22 [MIER®

Group A &M University X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fit Fx Fit
BEFE 28,376 26,937 28,376 26,937
ALWA 4,167 4,987 4,311 5,138
EEMS B 3,155 3,104 3,155 3,104
HAth 584 361 584 361
36,282 35,389 36,426 35,540

23 FERREBRE

Group A" &M University X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F Tt T T

REEBEAABEABZEN
SREEMNDEER

REIRF (E1B) /s (3.,485) 173 (3,485) 173
FLEMA 15,807 14,401 15,611 14,306
FEN (E518) /Was (670) 708 (670) 708
11,652 15,282 11,456 15,187
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24 EXPENDITURE

Teaching, learning and research

Teaching and research
Library

Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support

Management and general

Premises and related expenses

Student and general
education services

Total expenditure 2018

Teaching, learning and research

Teaching and research
Library

Central computing facilities
Other academic services

Institutional support
Management and general
Premises and related expenses

Student and general
education services

Total expenditure 2017

58

HERMR
(EES
R B E
H At ARG

BEXR

EER—RFR
R

SER—RAERB

—ER-\EXHAR

X8 BMEHE

HERHR
HER

PR BRI
HAE R

BEXE

EER—KRER
&R

2ER—RBE RS

“E-LFEXHMAR

24 HH
Group F&H University #k
Employee Employee
benefits benefits
expenses Operating 2018 expenses Operating 2018
EREF expenses  Depreciation Total REEF expenses  Depreciation Total
553 EERY e | 53 BB wE BE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Fr T T T Fr T Fr T
(Note 25) (Note 25)
(FitzE25) (PifzE25)

849,721 117,541 7,794 975,056 814,939 114,090 5818 934,847
33,075 24,786 1,254 59,115 33,075 24,786 1,254 59,115
46,716 20,748 12,005 79,469 46,716 20,748 12,005 79,469
53,742 8,351 72 62,165 53,742 8,351 72 62,165

983,254 171,426 21,125 1,175,805 948,472 167,975 19,149 1,135,596

(Note 24(a)) (Note 24(a))
(P E24(7F)) (P FE24(FR))
86,897 17,279 61 104,237 86,897 17,084 61 104,042
45,377 113,659 101,771 260,807 45,377 111,747 101,771 258,895
47,678 59,091 1,888 108,657 47,678 59,090 1,888 108,656
179,952 190,029 103,720 473,701 179,952 187,921 103,720 471,593
1,163,206 361,455 124,845 1,649,506 1,128,424 355,896 122,869 1,607,189
Group A &E University #X
Employee Employee
benefits benefits
expenses Operating 2017 expenses Operating 2017
EEREH expenses  Depreciation Total ‘EEH expenses  Depreciation Total
53 EERX Eils et ) 53 EIEBRX Eiis et
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T T T
(Note 25) (Note 25)
(P 5E25) (PifzE25)

800,697 105,317 7,166 913,180 769,729 101,837 5,649 877,215
32,388 22,600 1,189 56,177 32,388 22,600 1,189 56,177
45,903 22,982 10,608 79,493 45,903 22,982 10,608 79,493
51,197 9,489 738 61,424 51,197 9,489 738 61,424

930,185 160,388 19,701 1,110,274 899,217 156,908 18,184 1,074,309

(Note 24(a)) (Note 24(a))

(FHI7E24(F) (P =E24(F)
81,236 14,650 86 95,972 81,236 14,461 86 95,783
45,643 122,262 94,536 262,441 45,643 120,390 94,536 260,569
45,506 55,881 1,900 103,287 45,506 55,880 1,900 103,286
172,385 192,793 96,522 461,700 172,385 190,731 96,522 459,638
1,102,570 353,181 116,223 1,571,974 1,071,602 347,639 114,706 1,533,947
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24

EXPENDITURE (CONTINUED)

(a) Analysis of operating expenses - Institutional support

Management and general
Office expenses

Audit, professional and legal fees

General insurance
Minor equipment and
system implementation

Premises and related expenses
Utilities
Repair and maintenance and
minor works
Premises rental
Government rent and rates
Cleaning services
Security services
Office expenses
Telecommunications
Minor equipment and
system implementation
Property insurance
Notional rental for staff quarters

Student and general
education services
Student hostels expenses
Health care centre
Scholarship, bursaries and

prizes to students
Extra-curricular activities
Office expenses
Others

Total

EER—REE
MAER
B8 EENERER
— R
NERERESE N

REREHEER
YNGR
#iE  RERNDEITIE

BTHED

Z 0 Nl
BRIRYS

Rz RS
MAERX
BAER
NIRERERERE

YIERE
BIEEMERES

BAR —REERE

BARESH
BEHL

BEE  PESM
RINEED

I NEN R

Hoth

R

24 W (#)
(F) #BRZST — HELE

Group A&E University X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T Tt
11,997 10,358 11,978 10,340
2,574 2,643 2,496 2,561
1,449 1,328 1,351 1,239
1,259 321 1,259 321
17,279 14,650 17,084 14,461
22,091 21,775 21,452 21,204
42,090 44,797 41,699 44,418
933 825 933 825
12,191 12,274 11,510 11,596
10,035 11,858 9,940 11,722
14,118 13,633 14,051 13,570
8,862 11,307 8,862 11,307
456 740 417 695
2,074 4,224 2,074 4,224
634 629 634 629
175 200 175 200
113,659 122,262 111,747 120,390
14,397 15,882 14,397 15,882
3,160 3,090 3,160 3,090
25,856 23,827 25,855 23,826
11,567 8,981 11,567 8,981
3,421 2,915 3,421 2,915
690 1,186 690 1,186
59,091 55,881 59,090 55,880
190,029 192,793 187,921 190,731
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 25 {ERRFMAX
Group AR&EH University X
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fi Fr Fit
Wages and salaries T & KN 977,233 919,707 943,162 889,341
Unutilised annual leave and others Rz BEUER KR E 5,753 6,661 5,753 6,661
Gratuities KmE < 39,148 38,177 39,148 38,177
Contributions to MPF scheme SRIE R ET B AR 19,199 17,815 18,551 17,204
Contributions to superannuation ATESFT IR
scheme 59,004 58,337 59,004 58,337
(Reversal of)/provision for long service KR S (@) /B E
payment (102) 20 (53) 173
Housing benefits BERH 30,596 30,672 30,596 30,672
Other staff related benefits H & S AR 32,375 31,181 32,263 31,037
1,163,206 1,102,570 1,128,424 1,071,602
(a) Higher paid staff (F) ®m¥FEE
Total annual equivalent emoluments irrespective of the SHEENFHSEEE (TEHE
funding sources for the higher paid staff are analysed as AR DATAT
follows:

Group and University ZR&EBRZH A

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Basic salaries, housing allowances, K - FE=RL
other allowances and benefits H AR AL R & YR %= (K7 5T)

in kind (Note) 113,185 103,546
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 25 {ERIEFIFAE (48)
(a) Higher paid staff (Continued) (F) =¥FEE &)

The above emoluments fell within the following bands: Pt AR AT T -

Number of staff EE&H

2018 2017

Emoluments bands: B4 7 :
$1,800,001 - $1,950,000 1,800,001t - 1,950,0007T 15 12
$1,950,001 - $2,100,000 1,950,0017T - 2,100,0007T 6 2
$2,100,001 - $2,250,000 2,100,001t - 2,250,0007T 3 8
$2,250,001 - $2,400,000 2,250,001t - 2,400,0007T 8 5
$2,400,001 - $2,550,000 2,400,001t - 2,550,0007C 5 2
$2,550,001 - $2,700,000 2,550,0017T - 2,700,0007T 1 5
$2,700,001 - $2,850,000 2,700,001t - 2,850,0007T 2 2
$2,850,001 - $3,000,000 2,850,001t - 3,000,0007T 2 1
$3,000,001 - $3,150,000 3,000,001t - 3,150,0007T 1 2
$3,150,001 - $3,300,000 3,150,0017T - 3,300,0007T 2 1
$3,300,001 - $3,450,000 3,300,0017T - 3,450,0007C 2 1
$3,450,001 - $3,600,000 3,450,0017T - 3,600,0007C - 1
$3,600,001 - $5,400,000 3,600,001t - 5,400,0007T - -
$5,400,001 - $5,550,000 5,400,0017T - 5,550,0007T 1 -
$5,550,001 - $5,700,000 5,550,0017T - 5,700,0007C - 1
48 43

Note: BifaE:
Benefits in kind include medical insurance, leave provision and on-campus
accommodation. The notional rental value of the President’s Lodge is E1EH (5 H1EA) £1,073,0005C (ZF—+4 © 1,117,000
$1,073,000 (2017: $1,117,000) and each flat of staff quarters is $452,000 oT) - i EHEE S E & A G EH B4 /452,000 (ZF—+
(2017: $470,000). 4 1 470,0007T) °

B CIERERE - ER A ZHAEBNRAER o #

=+t

(b) Key management personnel compensation () EEEBAEHM
REBRHANFTEEEABEARE
NREERE - BEMTHAEE R
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling HREHHSREEAS - PIEE
the activities of the Group and the University and their BTN -

compensations are analysed as follows:

The key management of the Group and the University
refers to those senior management having authority

Group and University Z&E@BRH K

2018 2017

$'000 $'000

Fr T

Salaries, wages and allowances T& - #BfFnEas 23,388 25,048

Employer’s contribution to EEHRKRSHR

retirement schemes 2,026 2,279
Provision for gratuities and A & AR Se R R 1

unutilised annual leave 821 1,561

26,235 28,888

(©) No remuneration or other emoluments has been paid to
any Council members in respect of their honorary services
provided to the Group.

(A) MEREGKEHEFRERESKE
S0 T IR AT $REA -

BEEBHBENRE / 2017/2018 HERE
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26 TAXATION 26 WM&\
The University and its subsidiaries are exempted from payment BRI KBEED) F88ik  HARZHEAR
of Hong Kong Profits Tax by virtue of Section 88 of the Inland AR EHREBNEH -
Revenue Ordinance.
27 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 27 IFREBERERME
a) Cash generated from operations (F) “HEELENHRS
Group F&@
2018 2017
Note $'000 $'000
iz Fr Fit
Surplus for the year REZEER 65,797 130,568
Adjustments for: AEIER
- Depreciation - ITEE 3 124,845 116,223
- Management fees for - REMENEERE
investment portfolios 1,844 -
- (Gain)/loss on disposal of - HEWE - BERKE
property, plant and equipment (Wezs) /1R (1) 91
- Net investment loss/(gain) from - BRARBESFABENESE
financial assets at fair value BEREBEFEBE (W)
through profit or loss 23 3,485 (173)
- Grants released from - BERTEAAESHNHEE
deferred capital funds 14 (121,402) (113,149)
- Interest income - FRHA 23 (15,807) (14,407)
- Exchange differences -ERER (204) -
Changes in working capital: EEESHEE
- Increase in accounts receivable, - IR - k& RIANFIEE M
deposits and prepayments (10,509) (22,807)
- (Decrease)/increase in provision - EERAEE Ofd) A2
of employee benefits (3.946) 6,725
- Increase in accounts - FERTBR R FE ST RRIEE N
payable and accruals 26,742 6,306
- Increase/(decrease) in - EIEW AL N/ CRLA)
deferred income 18,167 (18,268)
Cash generated from operations EEEENRS 89,011 91,115
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (2) XERBIFHNEEHE
Group &M@
Note $'000
iz Fit
Deferred capital funds EEEFES
Balance at 1 July 2017 R-Z2—tFLtA-BHER 14 1,846,825
Changes from financing cash flows: KEMENE & nE
- Grants and donations received for additions of property, - RIGEYIE - R KRBT
plant and equipment HE& R 90,196
Other changes: H it #E) :
- Grants released from deferred capital funds to - BEEERESEBA
statement of comprehensive income ZHEBEROHED S (121,402)
- Non-cash additions of property, plant and equipment - M - MR RERERIERESEM 1,306
Balance at 30 June 2018 REZB-\FEXA=+HNER 14 1,816,925
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28 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 30 June 2018, the Group and the University had capital

commitments on leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures as

follows:

Contracted but not provided for BERAERERE

29 OTHER COMMITMENTS

(a)

As at 30 June 2018, the Group and the University did not
have any future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases.

In respect of the operating lease, the Group and the
University incurred operating lease charge in respect of
rental properties of $1,144,000 for the year ended 30 June
2018 (2017: $1,062,000).

As at 30 June 2018, the Group and the University had
future aggregate minimum lease receipts under operating
leases in respect of rental properties as follows:

Within one year —FR

The leases typically run for a period of one to three years.
Leases are usually reviewed annually to reflect the market
rentals.

As at 30 June 2018, cash funds of $7,807,000 (2017:
$7,103,000) mainly representing Students’ Union
membership fees are held by the University on behalf of
the Students’ Union for settlement of expenditure to be
incurred.

28 RWFEKIE
REZE-N\FERA=ZTH AEERKAEME
EMERE RANKENERARZNT:

Group and University Z<&E@BRH A

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Fi T
57,825 51,205
29 Hfthakik

) RIZE-NFXA=1+B rEEHK
BAREAARIELEEENRRRKIE
THERRER

BCEREMS - A%BRBARE
B ) \FAA=THILFEMNE
EMEERA1,144,000T (ZF—+
4 :1,062,0007T) °

(2) RZE-)N\FRA=+H xEEK
BARBEEMEZ A HHL =M
G2 RREEREYGRAREIT

Group and University ZR&EB R A

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Fr T

309 251

HENHM-—RAP—E=F - £&
BEaEeFHEHEE  UkwmsH

(A) RZT-NEXNA=1H  HZARS
£ E+H7,807,000tE® (Z2—+
4 17,103,0007T) - ZESEBHRE
EXeeBURAELINSEST -
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30

31

64

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30

Other than those disclosed in Note 8(c) and Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements, the University undertook the

following significant transactions with the EJUHK SCPE during the
year.

RMBEG X
B TERE SR EES () RIS A3
BN BHARFANGEFEREBRETT
HNERZS -

2018 2017
Note $'000 $'000
Hiat Fr Tt
Outsourced management SN TR B A
fee income (a) (F) 23 35
Rental income L ON (b) (2) 53 53
(a) Outsourced management fee income was charged by the University in () SN T BB UR A THARIR S 07 155 ok 60 15K PR 2K
accordance with the terms mutually agreed by both parties. KUER >
(b) Rental income was charged in accordance with the terms mutually (2) DU A THIRIE S 5 15553 B0 IR -
agreed by both parties.
INVOLVEMENT WITH UNCONSOLIDATED 31 #EFEHHEBRBERPOHES

STRUCTURED ENTITY

The Group holds interests in an unlisted unit trust. The purpose of
the investment is to generate investment income for the Group.

The table below sets out interests held by the Group in an
unconsolidated structured entity. The maximum exposure to loss is
the carrying amount of the financial assets held.

FREBFHIELTEMETPHRE - AR
BB MRAAEEFRIE N

AEERIFEHAELBEERAS#ERIIR
T e ARERARBRAFENEREEN
fREfEE -

Group and University @R A

During the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2018, the Group did
not provide any financial support to the unconsolidated structured
entity and has no intention of providing financial or other support.

The Group can redeem unit in the above unit trust upon request.

The Education University of Hong Kong / financial Report 2017/2018

2018 2017
Carrying amount Carrying amount
included in included in
financial assets financial assets
at fair value at fair value
Total net  through profit or Total net  through profit or
Number of assets loss (Note 9) Number of assets loss (Note 9)
investee of investee B ARAR(E investee of investee B ARAR(E
funds funds EEAIESE funds funds BB
WIRE HREES SRUEERRE WIRE wHREES SRIEERRE

Eo8eE BFEE ©%8 (ffat9) Eo8E BFEE ©%8 (F1719)

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T T
Investment in unlisted unit trust ~ 3E T EA{EFERE 1 1,455,182 1,312 1 2,398,900 1,274

EE-NERT—EFRNAZTRLF
ER - REERFZFEFAGHRIE AR ERIEMHY
N3Hs - WEEFRME N s

AREE A A L B EFRRHEREERE
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32

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Depreciation

The Group's property, plant and equipment are depreciated on

a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
after taking into account their estimated residual value. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the
assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives and residual values are based on management’s historical
experience with similar assets and, where applicable, taking into
account anticipated equipment upgrade and replacement. The
depreciation charge for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Involvement in unconsolidated structured entity

The Group has concluded that the unit trust in which it invests,
but that it does not consolidate, meet the definition of structured
entity because:

- the voting rights in the unit trust are not dominant rights in
deciding who controls them as they relate to administrative
tasks only;

- each unit trust’s activities are restricted by its prospectus;
and

- the unit trust has narrow and well-defined objectives to
provide investment opportunities to investors.

32

B aH &Rt & PUER
e

REBER RME - B LRENBRE
& - RETEF AT REIRIA B RORETITER
g - AEESFEMNEENETIRMRE
BRAE - BEUABEENERRERCANTESL
HEeE - TRHREEENREERELHE
UEERNBELR X (HER) ZEEETR
BHRALEFNERMEE - MBBER
FHERHIRERES - REEGHERKY
BRI ESH -

HEFaHTEERERPHER
AEBEERFAMAS T HNERMER
RENGHBERNTER  REWT :

- EREBRATHRREERTREET
e B E R E e
#

- SEECRENIHBERREEE
BBE R

- BUERERAREEREREREN
BHEL B R -
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33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND GUIDELINES
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations and the UGC has issued new guidelines which are
not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2018 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

BHEHBI - TE 2B RSB )

33

EFRGERREBE-F—/IN\FX
R=1HIEFEERMEBET - i
Rl - REMIESITTRERRPE

BEAMBHRERTIER  BESFHMASE
EMZIEER] TEANRERBESEE
ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ@ BEEABET  FTERINES|IERE

—NERA=ZTHLEEFERRERER
ﬁEKEﬂ‘%?&%’%%?ﬁ CBEEATSHREEAR
REEEAER -

Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after

WTFIR#s 2 R H & ETEARIAE R

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
(ERMBREER) £ —omIT A

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(CEBMBHRELER) £155% - RATFARMA

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

(ERPHMEERRE) £225 —IMNERZ RN HK

HKFRS 16, Leases
(CEBMBHREEL) F1695—

UGC Cost Allocation Guidelines for UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded Activities

HEE - HESAYRINESE TR AL LS

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards, interpretations and
guidelines is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. While the assessment has been substantially completed
for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial
adoption of the standards may differ as the assessment completed
to date is based on the information currently available to the
Group, and further impacts may be identified before the standards
are initially applied in the Group’s financial statements for the year
ending 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its accounting
policy elections, including the transition options, until the
standards are initially applied in that financial statements.
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1 January 2018

- N\F—A—H
1 January 2018
—Z-\F—-H—H
1 January 2018
—T-N\F—A—H
1 January 2019
“Z-hF—-HA—H
1 July 2018
—E-N\FLtHA—H

R 6 [ IE 72 AT fif 25 L (& 5T AN 28 B 4 40 46 %
RHRANEE - JBAR/L  AEECHH
TEERME T E A S HRA M RRIE
REXRZE - ERRHZENFHEN T XMW
oo BA (EBMBMELER) FIRME
165 M EEARTK - BEHRTFZ RS
ZEAMERZE T BT A E AR
ESpraey EEWEWW%EEEFK%IEW
AREENES BB R NZEN
ﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁlzai_q NERA
=+ RIENFEMBRRATE BRG] - NEE
MAEENEESHRRER  BREBEY
BE - BRZENRDBERRZEEIRE
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33

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND GUIDELINES
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets and calculation
of impairment of financial assets, including the measurement of
impairment for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes
the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans to use
the exemption from restating comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance
of funds at 1 July 2018.

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2)
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). The
classification is determined based on the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets and the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets.

The Group has assessed that its financial assets currently
measured at amortised cost and FVTPL will continue with
their respective classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure as either a 12-month expected
credit loss or a lifetime expected credit loss, depending

on the asset and the facts and circumstances. The Group
expects that the application of the expected credit loss
model will not have material impact on its financial
statements.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND GUIDELINES
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a new framework for income recognition.

It introduces a five-step model in order to determine when and
how to recognise income. Income is recognised when an entity
transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the amount
to which the entity expects to be entitled.

The Group plans to elect to use the cumulative effect transition
method for the adoption of HKFRS 15 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of funds at 1 July 2018. Based on the latest
assessment, the Group expects that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future will not have a significant impact on the Group'’s
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

HK(IFRIC) 22 provides guidance on how to determine “the date
of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange
rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency. This
interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

The Education University of Hong Kong / financial Report 2017/2018
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND GUIDELINES
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way

that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a

lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease, the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and
liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 is effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. The standard offers different transition options
and practical expedients. Given the Group does not have material
operating lease as a lessee, the Group considered that it is unlikely
to have a significant financial impact on its financial statements of
the Group upon the adoption of HKFRS 16.

UGC Cost Allocation Guidelines (“CAGs”) for UGC-
funded and non-UGC-funded Activities

The UGC has promulgated the CAGs to the eight UGC-funded
institutions for the purpose of allocating the costs between
UGC-funded and non-UGC funded activities, which has to be
implemented for the accounting period commencing from 1 July
2018, and will be presented in the Group’s financial statements
commencing in the financial year 2018/19.

The CAGs provide principles and approaches of cost allocation,
including the definition of cost pools and cost drivers. The cost
allocation between the UGC-funded and non-UGC funded
activities will be processed on a full costing approach, which
differs from the current cost allocation approach as disclosed in
Note 18(c).

Based on the Group’s assessment, it is expected that the adoption
of the CAGs requirements will affect the segment report for
UGC-funded and non-UGC-funded activities due to reallocation of
income and expenditure between the two activities.
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